
Appendix 4E                  ASX Listing Rule 4.3A 
Preliminary Final Report 

Skilled Group Limited 
 

Notes to the Preliminary Final Report 
          

ABN 66 005 585 811 
Results for Announcement to the Market 

Financial Year Ended (‘current period’) – 30 June 2014 
(‘previous corresponding period’ – 30 June 2013) 

 

  $AUD’000 

Revenue Up                0.1%       to  1,869,569 

Statutory net profit after tax attributable to members  Down           21.3%      to  44,200 

Underlying net profit after tax attributable to members
1
 Down             5.4%      to  55,286 

 

Dividends (distributions) Amount per security 

Franked amount per 
security 

Interim Dividend  

(Previous Year) 

7.5¢ 

 7.0¢ 

7.5¢ 

7.0¢ 

Final Dividend  

(Previous Year) 

9.5¢ 

9.0¢ 

9.5¢ 

9.0¢ 

Record date for determining entitlements to the Dividend 18 September 2014  

Date for payment of Final Dividend 17 October 2014 

The Dividend Reinvestment Plan will remain suspended until further notice. 

As the dividend is fully franked, the conduit foreign income impact is nil per share. 

 

Earnings Per Ordinary Fully Paid Share (EPS) 2014 Current period 

2013 Previous 
corresponding period 

Basic EPS 

Diluted EPS 

 

Underlying basic EPS
1
  

Underlying diluted EPS
1
  

18.86¢ 

18.51¢ 

 

23.60¢ 

23.15¢ 

24.05¢ 

23.27¢ 

 

25.03¢ 

24.21¢ 

 

Net tangible asset backing Current period 

Previous corresponding 
period 

Net tangible asset backing per ordinary security  2.89¢  36.6¢ 

 

Net asset backing Current period 

Previous corresponding 
period 

Net asset backing per ordinary security  203.5¢  202.1¢ 
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 Statutory net profit after tax from continuing operations reconciles to underlying net profit after tax from continuing 

operations as follows: 
 

  June 2014 June 2013 

 
$'000 $'000 

Statutory net profit after tax  44,200 56,159 

Reconciling items as per financial statement note 30 - Segment Reporting:    

Redundancy and branch closure costs 2,951 2,505 

Acquisition and integration costs 4,031 614 

Amortisation of acquired intangibles 6,211 630 

Notional Interest on deferred acquisition payments 1,338 - 

Tax benefit on long term incentive plan - (529) 

Income tax on reconciling items (3,445) (936) 

Underlying net profit after tax  55,286 58,443 

 
Underlying basic and diluted EPS is calculated using underlying net profit after tax. 
 

Details of entities over which control was gained Date of gain of control 

Broadsword Marine Contractors Pty Limited 3 July 2013 

T & C Services Pty Limited 11 February 2014 

 
From the date of acquisition: 

 Broadsword Marine Contractors Pty Limited has contributed $8,452,000 of profit before tax to the 
Consolidated Entity’s result, which includes profit from operations, acquisition and integration costs, 
amortisation of acquired intangibles and notional interest on deferred consideration. 

 T & C Services Pty Limited has contributed $100,000 of profit before tax to the Consolidated Entity’s result, 
which includes profit from operations, acquisition and integration costs and amortisation of acquired 
intangibles. 

 

Details of joint venture entities 

Percentage of ownership 
interest held at end of period 

Contribution to net profit of the 
Consolidated Entity

1
 

Current period 

Previous 
corresponding 
period 

Current period 
$’000 

Previous 
corresponding 
period 
$’000 

Offshore Marine Services Alliance Pty Ltd 50.0% 50.0% 4,028 5,701 

GSS Broadsword Marine JV Pty Ltd 50.0% - (279) - 

   3,749 5,701 

 
 

The Appendix 4E is based on audited accounts.  

Annual General Meeting 

Place:   State Library of Victoria 

Date:   23 October 2014 

Time:   11.00 am 

Annual Report available (approximate date): 22 September 2014 

For the profit commentary and other significant information needed by an investor to make an informed 
assessment of Skilled’s results please refer to the accompanying Skilled Group Limited media release. 

 

                                                 
1
 Includes amortisation of acquired intangibles 
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1. Overview 
SKILLED Group (also referred to as ‗SKILLED‘ or ‗the Group‘) is the largest provider of workforce solutions in Australia, employing 

over 50,000 skilled Australians a year. It is a well-established and trusted brand whose reach extends across the Australian 

economy, into all states and territories as well as all major sectors of the economy. SKILLED‘s core strength lies in partnering 

closely with clients over the long-term to improve workforce utilisation and increase productivity levels through the provision of 

skilled and semi-skilled people. 

The range of services offered by the Group reflects its size and scope. These include both onshore and offshore total workforce 

management, flexible labour solutions and project-based workforce solutions, including shut downs, installations and relocations, 

enabling our clients to focus on their core business operations.  It has a branch network of over 100 local and regional offices 

across Australia, New Zealand, United Kingdom, the United States of America, Singapore, Malta and the United Arab Emirates.  

An integral part of the Group‘s offering to clients is its safety leadership and excellent safety record. Our commitment to the health, 

safety and wellbeing of our employees is our first and most important value.  To meet the broader needs of our clients, SKILLED 

Group has broad-based expertise in industrial relations, information and reporting systems, and employee management, creating 

total solutions for clients seeking improved flexibility and productivity and a reduction in associated workforce costs. 

In addition, SKILLED has a strong commitment to meeting Australia‘s future skills needs. It is one of the largest employers of 

apprentices and trainees in the country, employing approximately 1,000 young trainees. The Group is committed to improving 

employment opportunities for Indigenous people and is currently employing approximately 500 Indigenous Australians.   

2. Business Segments 

WORKFORCE SERVICES 

SKILLED Workforce Services is the industry leader in specialised workforce solutions through the delivery of flexible labour and 

project based workforce solutions.   

Workforce Services is a people business specialising in blue collar trades. For the 2014 financial year, Workforce Services 

accounted for approximately half of SKILLED Group‘s total revenue servicing a broad range of industries including mining & 

resources, primary manufacturing, food & pharmaceuticals, automotive & machinery, transport & logistics, primary services, 

telecommunications, government and defence and utilities & infrastructure. 

TECHNICAL PROFESSIONALS 

Technical Professionals operates and provides IT&T, executive, professional services, technical professional and medically trained 

casual, contract and permanent staffing solutions.  For the 2014 financial year, the Technical Professionals segment accounted for 

approximately 20% of SKILLED Group‘s total revenue. 

The main brands within this segment include: 

SWAN Contract Personnel is well known for its long-standing presence in the professional, technical and engineering recruitment 

industry.  SWAN‘s speciality is in the Oil & Gas and Mining industries. It has built a strong track record in providing project 

management, engineering and project support labour into onshore and offshore oil and gas, petrochemicals, mineral and 

infrastructure projects. 

Damstra Technology Solutions specialises in workforce management, compliance, and safety management with a unique web-

based Total Workforce Management System (TWMS) designed and developed to help businesses manage their site-based 

workforce, contractors, and visitors. 

Mosaic specialises in sourcing, carefully assessing and placing skilled professional, IT, Government and business support staff at 

all levels. 

ENGINEERING AND MARINE SERVICES  

Engineering and Marine Services provides contract maintenance and engineering services; and offshore marine staffing and vessel 

chartering and management services, through two business units being ATIVO/Thomas & Coffey and SKILLED Offshore (formerly 

Offshore Marine Services (OMS)). 

For the 2014 financial year, Engineering and Marine Services accounted for approximately 30% of SKILLED Group‘s total revenue. 

ATIVO and Thomas & Coffey (acquired in February 2014) works closely with SKILLED Workforce Services to deliver projects and 

capital works, whole of life maintenance services (installations, commissioning, operations and production), decommissioning and 

infrastructure maintenance and shutdowns, outages, relines and turnarounds. 

ATIVO and Thomas & Coffey are leading providers of specialist maintenance and project services to the mining, manufacturing, 

maritime, industrial and energy resource sectors. 

SKILLED Offshore  is a leading provider of offshore drilling and marine personnel to the oil and gas industry, and includes 

Broadsword Marine Contractors business acquired in July 2013.   



 

3 

 

SKILLED Offshore has offices based in Australia, Malta, New Zealand, Singapore, United Arab Emirates, United Kingdom and the 

United States of America, offering a global solution to the industry‘s marine vessel and manning requirements.   

SKILLED Offshore services include: recruitment solutions, project management and marine consultancy, provision of marine and 

drilling personnel, catering services and rig moving. 

Offshore Marine Services Alliance Pty Ltd (OMSA) is 50/50 joint venture between SKILLED Group and PB Sea-Tow Holdings 
(BVI) Limited principally engaged in the provision of tugs and barges and associated services to the Gorgon Project in North-
West Australia.  SKILLED Group holds a 50% investment in OMSA, having increased its investment from 33.3% to 50% during 
the prior period. 

3. Our Strategy 
SKILLED Group‘s Core Plus strategy, which was initiated more than two years ago in order to turnaround its performance, remains 

the key focus in delivering shareholder value.  

Key elements of the Core Plus strategy include: 

 Building scale in attractive higher skill, higher margin segments; and 

 Leveraging scale and brand strength in Workforce Services with a focus on customer service, cost efficiency and safety. 

With the acquisition of Broadsword in July 2013 and Thomas & Coffey in February 2014 SKILLED has increased its exposure to 

higher skilled roles and growth sectors such as oil and gas and will to continue to pursue growth in these sectors, and other growth 

sectors such as telecommunications and infrastructure. 

Significant progress continues to be made on the transformation program with the successful upgrade of the Group‘s ERP system 

in July 2014 which was on time and on budget.  This will allow for continued simplification of back-office processes and 

opportunities to further reduce the cost base. 

4. SKILLED Group Financial Performance 
For the year 30 June ($000‘s) 2014 2013 

Revenue and equity accounted income 1,873,318 1,873,893 

EBITDA
1
 95,356 95,083 

Depreciation and amortisation (12,477) (10,379) 

EBIT
1
 82,879 84,704 

Net interest expense (7,781) (3,774) 

Profit before reconciling items and income tax expense
1
 75,098 80,930 

Net reconciling items
1
 (14,531) (3,749) 

Income Tax Expense (16,367) (21,022) 

Reported profit after income tax expense 44,200 56,159 

1
 As per Segment reporting in Full Year Financial Report 

 

 

 

Reconciliation of result for the year 30 June ($‘000s) 2014 2013 

Reported profit after income tax expense 44,200 56,159 

Net reconciling items
1
 14,531 3,749 

Tax on net reconciling items & other items (3,445) (1,465) 

Underlying profit after income tax expense 55,286 58,443 

1
 As per Segment reporting in Full Year Financial Report 

 

REVENUE 

Revenue for the Group was $1.873 billion, in line with the prior comparative period (‗pcp‘) due to strong growth in the maintenance 
and marine sectors and the acquisition of Broadsword and Thomas & Coffey offset by the slowdown in mining activity and overall 
weaker employment growth. 

EARNINGS BEFORE INTEREST, TAX, DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION (EBITDA) 

EBITDA of $95.4 million compared to $95.1 million in the prior period, with EBITDA margins constant in both periods at 5.1%. 

EBITDA excludes restructuring costs and acquisition/integration costs which are recognised within net reconciling items in Segment 
reporting in Full Year Financial Report. 
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The cost out program delivered a $15 million reduction in operating and other costs resulting in a sustainably lower cost base.  
Further productivity improvements are being targeted in the 2015 financial year as the Group leverages its scale and improves 
operational efficiency. 

DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION 

Depreciation and amortisation for the year was $12.5 million (pcp $10.4 million), reflecting higher depreciation from the asset 
backed acquisition of Broadsword as well as additional vessels acquired during the period.  The Thomas & Coffey acquisition also 
resulted in higher depreciation during the year. 

In addition, amortisation of acquired intangibles of $6.2m was incurred (pcp $0.6m) in respect of customer contracts and other 
intangibles assets acquired from Broadsword and Thomas & Coffey.  This amortisation is recognised within net reconciling items in 
Segment reporting in Full Year Financial Report. 

NET INTEREST EXPENSE 

Net interest expense (finance costs less interest revenue) for the year was $7.8m, an increase of $4.0 million on the pcp.  The 
increase was principally due to higher levels of debt in the current year from the acquisition of businesses and capital expenditure 
on additional vessel acquisitions. 

In addition, notional (non-cash) interest on deferred consideration of $1.3 million (pcp $nil) was incurred from recognising this 
consideration at its net present value on acquisition.  This notional interest is recognised within net reconciling items in Segment 
reporting in Full Year Financial Report. 

INCOME TAX EXPENSE 

SKILLED‘s effective tax rate for the period was 27.0% (pcp 27.2%). SKILLED‘s effective tax rate is impacted by lower income tax 
rates in foreign jurisdictions and equity accounted income from joint ventures which is recognised on a net of tax basis. 

PROFIT AFTER INCOME TAX EXPENSE 

As a result of the items described above, reported profit after income tax expense was $44.2 million (pcp $56.2 million) while 
underlying profit after income tax expense was $55.3 million (pcp $58.4 million). 

DIVIDENDS 

A fully franked dividend of 9.5 cents per share was declared taking the full year dividend to 17.0 cents per share an increase of1.0 
cent per share from the prior year.  This reflects the strong operating cashflow generation of the Group. 

5. Segment Financial Performance 

WORKFORCE SERVICES 

For the year 30 June ($‘000s) 2014 2013 Change 

 Revenue $m  884,253 918,323 (34,070) 

 EBITDA $m  35,200 40,824 (5,624) 

 EBITDA margin  4.0% 4.4% (0.4%) 

 
Revenue was $884.3 million, a 3.7% decrease on the prior year, while EBITDA was $35.2 million a 13.8% decrease. 

Workforce Services‘ revenue and margin continued to be affected by difficult market conditions, particularly in the mining and 
manufacturing sectors, with weaker employment growth post the Federal budget. 

Underlying activity levels stabilised in the second half and have been maintained to date with contract wins in iron ore, coal, 
infrastructure, rail and further opportunities in telecommunications (NBN). 

Good progress was made on the implementation of systems and process initiatives and further cost reduction, partially offsetting 
continued pricing pressure. The recently upgraded ERP (Agresso), and ongoing automation and centralisation of activities, will 
benefit Workforce Services in particular. 

Volumes in Workforce Services continued to benefit from supplier consolidation in mining and FMCG sectors. 

The pipeline of infrastructure projects and re-setting of NBN activity is expected to support future growth.  

TECHNICAL PROFESSIONALS 

For the year 30 June ($‘000s) 2014 2013 Change 

 Revenue $m  375,032 488,914 (113,882) 

 EBITDA $m  16,574 26,795 (10,221) 

 EBITDA margin  4.4% 5.5% (1.1%) 

 
Revenue was $375.0 million, a 23.3% decrease on the prior year, while EBITDA was $16.6 million, a 38.1% decrease. 

Swan revenue and contractor numbers declined significantly across the year, affected by reduced engineering project activity. 
However, contractor numbers appear to have stabilised towards the end of the second half. 
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There was weaker demand for permanent and contractor technical professional roles, however, demand for NBN related 
telecommunication roles is expected to increase in FY15.  Training Services and Indigenous employment continued to perform well, 
and performance improved in Skilled Health. 

The cost base in this segment was lowered significantly during FY14 in response to the ongoing difficult market conditions. 

ENGINEERING & MARINE SERVICES 

For the year 30 June ($‘000s) 2014 2013 Change 

 Revenue $m  617,841 468,758 149,083 

 EBITDA $m  58,278 41,321 16,957 

 EBITDA margin  9.4% 8.8% 0.6% 

 
Revenue was $617.8m, a 31.8% increase on the prior year, while EBITDA was $58.3m a 41.0% increase. 

Activity levels in ATIVO improved in the second half, with an increase in maintenance and shutdown activity, in addition to contract 
wins at Olympic Dam, in the Hunter Valley and the Pilbara. 

Thomas & Coffey, acquired in February 2014, is performing well, providing reach and capability to the Engineering offering.  
Integration is progressing to plan. 

In SKILLED Offshore, a strong performance from the International and New Zealand businesses, and improved activity levels in the 
Australian business in the second half, contributed positively to the result. 

Mobilisation of the Saipem contract commenced in the fourth quarter, with the majority of activity scheduled to occur in FY15. 

Broadsword Marine Services EBITDA contribution was in line with expectations on acquisition.  The business experienced a high 
level of vessel utilisation in the second half and has a strong pipeline of work, including mining and infrastructure related projects. 

Activity levels in the OMSA JV continue to wind-down, consistent with the client‘s project schedules.  The current contract is due to 
be completed in December 2015. 

Overall, the strong second half run-rate achieved in Engineering and Marine Services is expected to continue into FY15.  There is a 
strong pipeline of opportunities, including recent contract wins.  

 

6. SKILLED Group Financial Position 

 
30 June 2014 

$‘000 
30 June 2013 

$‘000 

Total Assets 873,099 684,720 

Total Liabilities 394,302 212,814 

Total Equity 478,797 471,906 

TOTAL ASSETS 

Total assets increased by $188.4 million from $684.7 million to $873.1 million.  Current trade receivables were $254.9 million, an 
increase of $44.1 million from the pcp of which $29.6 million related due to the acquisition of businesses during the period and the 
balance due to higher activity from the acquired businesses towards the end of the 2014 financial year, a higher mix of business 
with Engineering & Marine customers with longer credit terms and the impact of the initial mobilisation of the SKILLED Offshore 
manning services contract with Saipem in relation to the INPEX operated Ichthys LNG project. 

Property, plant and equipment was $88.1 million, an increase of $70.0 million, of which $29.2m related to the acquisition of 
businesses during the period with the balance due to due to $40.9 million additional vessels purchased to support the Broadsword 
marine business.  Other items of capital expenditure were offset by depreciation in the period. 

Equity accounted investments decreased by $10.4 million to $22.9 million reflecting dividends of $15.0 million received during the 
period from the OMSA joint venture and the share of income from associates recognised for the year. 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 

Total liabilities increased by $181.5 million from $212.8 million to $394.3 million. Of the increase, $66.9 million related to liabilities 
acquired with businesses during the period, including deferred consideration payable but excluding debt assumed, while 
borrowings increased $120.2 million due to cash payments in relation to acquisitions and additional vessel purchases (refer 
Funding and capital management for further details). 

TOTAL EQUITY 

Equity increased by $6.9 million from $471.9 million to $478.8 million.  Of this, retained earnings increased by $5.5 million reflecting 
profit earned for the year of $42.2 million less dividends paid of $38.7 million.    



Operating and Financial Review (cont.) 

6 

 

7. Funding and capital management 
Financing facilities of $385.7 million were available as at 30 June 2014 of which $177.6 million were used (excluding finance lease 
liabilities and unamortised loan establishment costs), leaving $208.1 million unused. 

 

Net Debt (borrowings less cash) increased by $125.3 million from $44.8 million to $170.1 million.  The increase in debt reflected the 
following key items: 

 operating cashflow of $60.7 million; 

 net interest paid of $7.2 million; 

 capital expenditure of $51.0 million, of which $40.9m related to vessel purchases; 

 payments for acquisitions of $86.5 million (net of $8.5 million of debt assumed); 

 dividends paid of $38.7 million. 

 

SKILLED Group‘s key capital structure financial metrics as at 30 June 2014 were: 
 

 2014 2013 

Leverage   

(Net debt/EBITDA(i)) 1.8x 0.5x 

Interest cover   

(EBITDA(i)/Net interest expense(i)) 12.3x 25.2x 

Gearing   

(Net debt/Net debt + equity) 26% 9% 

(i)    EBITDA and net interest expense is as disclosed in note 30 Segment Reporting 

 

At 30 June 2014, the syndicated bank debt facility was $320 million in total comprising three tranches, being $100 million (maturing 
in August 2015), $90 million (maturing in August 2015) and $130 million (maturing in August 2016). The market rate advance 
facility is $22.5 million (maturing in December 2014). 

 

Future Commitments 

As at 30 June 2014, SKILLED Group‘s future operating lease commitments of $49.8 million (pcp $47.9 million) related to leases of 
office premises, computer equipment and bareboat charter arrangements.  

 

8. Outlook 
The stronger second half FY14 trends are expected to continue into FY15, despite external market challenges: 

 Workforce Services: overall activity levels appear to have stabilised, with wins in FMCG, mining & resources and transport 
& logistics, however margin pressure is expected to continue. 

 Engineering & Marine Services: the contribution from the Saipem project will offset reduced activity from the OMSA JV.  A 
full year contribution from Thomas & Coffey and growth in Broadsword will support FY15 earnings.  Growth is also 
expected from increased activity levels, new contract wins and a visible pipeline of opportunities in project maintenance 
and marine. 

 Technical Professionals: contractor numbers in Swan showed some signs of stabilising at the end of FY14. 
Telecommunications activity is expected to strengthen in line with increased NBN activity. Health and Training Services 
activity levels are expected to remain solid into FY15. 

The cost reduction program is expected to deliver a further $10 million benefit in FY15. 

Working capital will peak in mid FY15 in line with activity on the Saipem project. 

SKILLED is well positioned for longer term benefits from its pipeline of opportunities across infrastructure, mining and oil & gas and 
any cyclical improvement in economic activity and expansion in mining volumes.  Ongoing strategy implementation, further cost 
reduction, cash generation and a strong balance sheet support future dividends and SKILLED will continue to invest in future 
growth. 
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9. Risk management 
The risk management process at SKILLED Group analyses and manages business risks, as well as identifies business process 
improvement opportunities. The risk assessment process includes an estimation of the likelihood of risk occurrence, potential 
impact on the financial results and an assessment of the effectiveness of existing internal controls. When existing controls need 
further improvements, action plans are established and implemented to mitigate the risk to an acceptable level.  All business units 
perform risk assessments on a regular basis and a summary of results is reported to the Audit & Risk Committee. 

Set out below are summaries of key risks which may materially impact the execution and achievement of the business strategies 
and prospects for the Group in future financial years.  These key risks should not be taken to be a complete or exhaustive list of the 
risks and uncertainties associated with the Group. Many of the risks are outside the control of the Group or its officers. There can 
be no guarantee that SKILLED will achieve its stated objectives, that it will meet trading performance expectations, or that any 
forward looking statements contained in this report will be realised or otherwise eventuate.  

KEY RISKS IN RELATION TO SKILLED GROUP 

Downturn in the industries in which we work 

SKILLED's revenue and growth is susceptible to any downturn in the industries and geographies we service. In turn, the labour 
related services we supply are susceptible to any economic or political changes that lead to a decreased demand for workers. 
SKILLED's financial performance could be affected by downward movements in the economic and labour market conditions.  

SKILLED has developed a diversified portfolio of businesses with exposures across industries and geographies and across a broad 
range of service offerings.  While general economic conditions are outside the Group‘s control this diversification mitigates the risk 
of a downturn in any one area. 

Key contracts and business relations 

Services which we provide are generally subject to contracts that are terminable on short notice. SKILLED has fixed term contracts 
with the majority of its significant customers. However, these contracts can be terminated on notice prior to the expiry of the fixed 
term. The financial performance of SKILLED is therefore susceptible to the loss of one or more major contracts or clients.  

SKILLED is proactively engaged in maximising customer retention and seeking new customers and opportunities to mitigate the 
risk of loss of one or more major contracts. 

Competition  

SKILLED's business is susceptible to competition for the provision of labour related services in the markets in which we operate. 
Additionally, competitive pricing strategies and demands from high value clients seeking preferred supplier agreements, may 
impact on SKILLED's profit margins and market share.  

This risk is mitigated by a large diversified client base reducing the impact of pricing strategies and demands from any one 
customer. 

Safety 

While SKILLED‘s objective is to achieve zero harm, there remains the risk of serious injuries or fatalities to our employees.  This 
risk is mitigated by progressively improving on already high safety performance standards across the business.  Central to this is 
SKILLED‘s Safety Golden Rules which are well embedded and embraced across our business.  We also work with clients to 
enhance their approach to managing their safety risks. 

Reliance on key personnel  

There can be no assurance that SKILLED will be able to retain key personnel and the departure of such personnel may affect 
adversely the business until suitable replacements are recruited. SKILLED endeavours to ensure that it remains competitive in 
terms of remuneration and other incentives, and reviews employee incentive arrangements from time to time with a view to aligning 
management‘s and employees' interests with those of SKILLED and its shareholders. 

Other risks 

Other areas of risk faced by SKILLED Group include:  

 operational risk, which arises from inadequate or failed internal processes, people and systems, or from external events; 

 risks associated with the integration of acquired businesses; 

 risks associated with our offshore and overseas activities; 

 risks associated with the industrial relations landscape in Australia; 

 contractual risk, being the nature of the performance and indemnity requirements in contracts with customers and; 

 financial risks arising from fraud, regulatory breaches and bad debts. 

Appropriate policies and procedures are continually being developed and updated to help manage these risks. 
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The Directors of SKILLED Group Limited (the "Company") present the annual financial report for the consolidated entity comprising 
the Company and its controlled entities (collectively referred to as ―SKILLED Group‖) for the financial year ended 30 June 2014.  

Directors‘ 
The Directors of the Company during the financial year were: 

Directors Qualifications & experience  Directorships and Offices  

Vickki McFadden 

 Independent Non-executive 
Chairman  

 Chairman of the Nomination 
Committee 

 Member of the Audit & Risk 
Committee  

 Member of Remuneration 
Committee 

BComm, LLB 
 
Appointed Chairman in October 2010 and a Director 
in September 2005. 
 
Broad experience in finance and law with 
considerable experience in corporate finance 
transactions. Previously, a Director/Principal of 
Centaurus Corporate Finance and Managing 
Director, Investment Banking, at Merrill Lynch in 
Australia. 

 

Listed 
Non-Executive Director, Leighton Holdings 
Limited (from June 2013 to May 2014) 
 
Other  
President of the Takeovers Panel 
(appointed March 2013). Member since 
March 2008 
 
Non-Executive Director, The Myer Family 
Company Holdings Pty Ltd, The Myer 
Family Investments Pty Ltd, Sidney Myer 
Custodian Pty Ltd and The Myer Family 
Company Ltd (since August 2011) 
 
Member, Advisory Board and Executive 
Committee of Australian School of 
Business, The University of New South 
Wales (since August 2000) 

Mick McMahon 

 Chief Executive Officer and 
Managing Director 

BEc, Harvard Business School Advanced 
Management Program (2009) 
 
Managing Director and CEO since November 2010. 
 
Previous experience in national marketing, supply 
chain, IT and strategy. Mick previously spent 19 
years with Shell in Australia and overseas.  His roles 
included Vice President Retail Marketing for Shell‘s 
global retail business, Director of Shell‘s UK & Ireland 
downstream businesses, GM Strategy & Marketing, 
Shell Europe and running its Australian retail 
business.  Mick was previously Chief Operating 
Officer Coles from 2007 to 2009 and Managing 
Director of Coles Express 2005 to 2009.   
Prior to joining SKILLED Group, he was Senior 
Advisor with TPG Capital engaging in investments in 
the energy, retail and industrial sectors in Australia 
and overseas. 

Listed 
Non-Executive Director, Metcash Ltd (since 
November 2013) 
 
Other 
Chairman, Red Rock Leisure Pty Ltd (since 
December 2009) 
 
Member of Business Council of Australia 
 
Victorian and National Councillor of the 
Australian Industry Group 
 
Co-Chair, Victorian Industry Skills 
Consultative Committee (since  March 
2013) 
 
 

Tony Cipa 

 Independent Non-Executive 
Director  

 Chairman of the Audit & Risk 
Committee 

BBus, Grad Dip Accounting 
 
Appointed Director in April 2011. 
 
Tony spent 20 years with CSL Limited in various 
senior finance roles. Tony was Chief Financial 
Officer, CSL (1994 – 2000) and was appointed to the 
Board of CSL Limited as Finance Director in 2000 
until his retirement in 2010. 

Listed 
Non-Executive Director, Navitas Limited 
(since May 2014) 
 
Non-Executive Director, Healthscope 
Limited (since June 2014) 
 
Other  
Non-Executive Director, Mansfield District 
Hospital (since July 2011) 

Max Findlay  

 Independent Non-Executive 
Director 

 Member of the Audit & Risk 
Committee 

 Member of the Remuneration 
Committee  

 Member of the Nomination 
Committee 

 

BEc 
 
Appointed Director in March 2010. 
 
Broad experience in services and manufacturing. 
Max spent 20 years at Programmed Maintenance 
Services and was Managing Director for 18 years 
until his retirement in 2008..  Prior to that he was its 
Business Development Manager.  He previously 
spent 11 years with Australian Consolidated 
Industries, three years with Vinyl Clad (a Division of 
Smith & Nephew) and five years with James Sephton 
Plastics. 

 

Listed 
Chairman, EVZ Limited (April 2008 to 
present) 
 
Chairman, Redflex Holdings Limited  
(November 2009 to February 2013) 
 
Other  
Deputy Chairman, the Royal Children‘s 
Hospital, Melbourne (since December 
2012).  Director since 2009 
 
Non-Executive Director, SMEC Holdings 
Limited (trading as Snowy Mountain 
Engineering Corporation) (since April 2010) 

Non-Executive Director, Exact Mining 
Group Pty Ltd (from August 2008 to March 
2014). 
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Directors Qualifications & experience  Directorships and Offices  

Bob Herbert AM 

 Independent Non-Executive 
Director 

 Chairman of the Remuneration 
Committee 

 

BComm 
 
Director since November 2003. 
 
Former CEO of Australian Industry Group. 
Considerable industry experience.  Involved with 
Australian Industry Group and its predecessor 
organisation, Metal Trades Industry Association of 
Australia, since 1961, including 30 years as a director 
in numerous roles.  

Listed 
Nil 
 
Other  
Deputy Chairman, Industry Capability 
Network Limited (since May 2003) 
 
Chairman, Melbourne Cricket Ground Trust 
(appointed 2014). 
Trustee since  November 2003  
 
Chairman, trackSAFE Foundation (since 
November 2012) 
 
Water Supplier Advocate (from April 2010 
to June 2014), appointed by 
Commonwealth Department of Innovation, 
Industry, Science & Research 
 
Trustee, Emergency Services 
Superannuation Board (from June 2010 to 
30 June 2013) 
 

Tracey Horton 

 Independent Non-Executive 
Director 

 Member of the Audit & Risk 
Committee  

 Member of the Remuneration 
Committee 

 Member of the Nomination 
Committee 

 

BEc(Hons), MBA 
 
Appointed Director in February 2011. 
 
Tracey previously worked as an economist, business 
analyst and management consultant and has 
experience in developing strategy, performance 
improvement and business turnaround, having 
worked in the public and private sectors in Australia 
and overseas.  
 
Tracey was the Dean of The University of Western 
Australia Business School (February 2005 - August 
2011) and worked at the Reserve Bank of Australia 
(based in Sydney) and Bain & Company (based in 
San Francisco). 

 

Listed 
Non-Executive Director, AHG Limited (since 
May 2012)  
 
Non-Executive Director, Navitas Limited 
(since June 2012) 
 
Other  
Chairman, Council of Presbyterian Ladies 
College (since September 2012) 
 
President, Chamber of Commerce and 
Industry of WA (Inc) (since 2013),  Vice-
President (from October 2012) 
 
Chair, Perth Fashion Concepts Inc (since 
February 2013) 
 
Member, Bain & Co Advisory Board (since 
January 2014) 
 
Member, Australian Treasury Advisory 
Committee (since May 2014) 

Jim Walker 
Independent Non-Executive Director 

GAICD 
 
Appointed Director November 2013. 
 
Jim has over 40 years of experience in the resources 
sector, most recently as Managing Director and Chief 
Executive Officer of WesTrac Pty Ltd, where he led 
the company‘s rapid development in industrial and 
mining services locally and in China.  Prior to this, Mr 
Walker held various roles with other Australian 
Caterpillar dealers. 
 
Jim is a qualified Diesel and Heavy Earthmoving 
Equipment Fitter. 

Listed 
 Chairman, Macmahon Holdings Limited 

(since March 2014). 
 Non-Executive Director since October 

2013 
 

Non-Executive Director, Seeing Machines 
Limited (since May 2014) 
(Listed on London Stock Exchange) 
 
Other 

 Trustee, WA Motor Museum (since 2001) 
 
 Councillor, Wesley College, Perth (since 

2006) 
 
 Non-Executive Director, RAC Holdings, 

WA (since October 2013) 
 
 Chairman, WA State Training Board (since 

July 2014). 
 Director since March 2014 
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There have been no changes to the directors since the end of the financial year. 

As at the date of this report, the interests of the directors in the shares and options of SKILLED Group Limited were: 

Directors Fully paid ordinary shares Shares under option/rights 

VA McFadden  126,885 - 

MP McMahon 1,005,339 3,248,946 

AM Cipa 15,544 - 

MJ Findlay  35,000 - 

RN Herbert AM 13,054 - 

TA Horton - - 

JA Walker - - 

The Remuneration Report set out at pages 12 to 25 of this Report forms part of this Directors‘ Report.  

Company Secretary 

SHARYN PAGE, BALLB, ACIS 

Appointed Company Secretary and Group General Counsel of SKILLED Group on 1 December 2012.  Previously Company 
Secretary, Spotless Group Limited (2010 – 2012), Deputy Company Secretary, ANZ (2009), Company Secretary, Arrium Limited 
(formerly OneSteel Limited) (2008 – 2009), Board Executive and Company Secretary, AMP (2005 – 2008) and Assistant Company 
Secretary, AMP (2003 – 2005).  Previously held a number of legal and compliance roles within the financial services industry. 

Dividends 

For the financial year ended 30 June 2014, a final dividend of 9.5 cents per share franked to 100% (at a corporate income tax rate 
of 30%) will be paid on 17 October 2014 to holders of fully paid ordinary shares.  An interim dividend of 7.5 cents per share franked 
to 100% (at a corporate income tax rate of 30%) was paid on 11 April 2014. 

Principal activities 

The principal activities of SKILLED Group were the provision of staffing and related solutions to the public and private sectors. This 
included the provision of supplementary trades and professional labour, maintenance services, project management, healthcare 
professionals, offshore marine vessel and staffing services, customer contact solutions and trainee and apprenticeship 
management. 

Results 

The net profit of SKILLED Group for the financial year after income tax expense was $44,200,000 (2013: $56,159,000). 

Review of operations 

Information on the operations and financial position of SKILLED Group and its business strategies and prospects is set out in the 
Operating and Financial Review. 

Changes in state of affairs 

There has been no significant change in the state of affairs of the Consolidated Entity. 

Subsequent events 

There has been no other matter or circumstance occurring subsequent to the end of the financial year that has significantly 
affected, or may significantly affect the operations of the Consolidated Entity, results of those operations, or the state of affairs of 
the Consolidated Entity in future financial years. 

Future developments 

In the opinion of the directors, the disclosure of any information in addition to that provided in the Operating and Financial 
Review relating to the likely developments in the operations of SKILLED Group and the expected results of those operations could 
be prejudicial to the interests of SKILLED Group. Accordingly, this information has not been included in this report. 
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Environmental regulation and performance 

The Company‘s operations are subject to various environmental regulations under both Commonwealth and State legislation.  

The Company has established procedures to monitor and manage compliance with existing environmental regulations and new 
regulations as they come into force. The Company has not been fined or prosecuted for, or convicted of, any significant breaches of 
environmental regulation during the financial year. 

Indemnification of officers and auditors 

During the financial year, the Company paid a premium for a contract insuring the directors of the Company (as named above), the 
company secretary and all executive officers of the Company and of any related body corporate against a liability incurred as such 
by a director, company secretary or executive officer to the extent permitted by the Corporations Act 2001. The contract of 
insurance prohibits disclosure of the nature of the liability and the amount of the premium. 

SKILLED Group has entered into a Deed of Indemnity, Insurance and Access with each director of the Company and the company 
secretary against a liability incurred as such by the director or the company secretary, to the extent permitted by the Corporations 
Act 2001 and to provide funding during legal proceedings against the directors or the company secretary, where the legal 
proceedings arise from acting in their capacity as a director or company secretary of SKILLED Group or a subsidiary.  

To the extent permitted by law, the Company has agreed to indemnify its auditors, Ernst & Young, as part of the terms of its audit 
engagement agreement against claims by third parties arising from the audit (for an unspecified amount). No payment has been 
made to indemnify Ernst & Young during or since the financial year.  

Board and committee meetings 

The table below sets out the Board and committee meetings held during the financial year and, where applicable, the number 
attended by each director.  Directors have a standing invitation to all Committee meetings and often attend meetings where they 
are not Committee members. 

  Board 

Audit & Risk  

Committee 

Remuneration 

Committee 

Nomination  

Committee 

Other special purpose 

Committees 

Director Held Attended Held Attended Held Attended Held Attended Held Attended 

VA McFadden 11 11 5 5 5 5 0 0 3 3 

MP McMahon 11 11 - - - - - - 7 7 

AM Cipa 11 11 5 5 - - - - 5 4 

MJ Findlay 11 11 5 4 5 4 0 0 - - 

RN Herbert AM 11 11 - - 5 5 - - - - 

TA Horton 11 11 5 5 5 5 0 0 - - 

JA Walker1 6 6 - - - - - - - - 

Rounding of amounts 

The Company is of the kind referred to in ASIC Class Order 98/100, dated 10 July 1998, and, in accordance with that Class 
Order, amounts in the Directors‘ Report and the Financial Report has been rounded off to the nearest thousand dollars. 

Non-audit services 

The directors are satisfied that the provision of non-audit services, during the year, by the auditor (or by another person or firm on 
the auditor‘s behalf) is compatible with the general standard of independence for auditors imposed by the Corporations Act 2001. 

Details of the amounts paid or payable to the auditor for non-audit services provided during the year by the auditor are outlined in 
note 26 to the financial statements. 

Auditor‘s independence declaration 

The auditor‘s independence declaration is included on page 26. 

 

                                                           
1 JA Walker joined SKILLED Group as a Non-Executive Director on 1 November  2013. 



Remuneration Report 

12 

 

This Remuneration report forms part of the Directors‘ Report. 

1. Introduction 
This Remuneration Report details remuneration information as it applies to SKILLED Group Key Management Personnel (―KMP‖) for 
the year ended 30 June 2014 in accordance with the requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 (the Act) and its regulations.  This 
information has been audited as required by section 208(3C) of the Act.  Our remuneration disclosures aim to maintain a high 
standard of clarity and transparency in communications with all stakeholders.  

The KMP referenced throughout this report are listed below. 

Non-Executive Directors Position 

Vickki McFadden Chairman, Chairman - Nomination Committee 

Tony Cipa Non-Executive Director, Chairman -  Audit & Risk Committee  

Max Findlay Non-Executive Director 

Bob Herbert AM Non-Executive Director, Chairman - Remuneration Committee 

Tracey Horton Non-Executive Director 

Jim Walker (i) Non-Executive Director 

 

Executive directors and KMP Position 

Mick McMahon Chief Executive Officer, Executive Director 

Gary Kent Chief Financial Officer 

David Timmel Chief Operating Officer, Workforce Services 

Johannes Risseeuw (ii) Chief Operating Officer, Engineering & Offshore 

Jennifer Boulding(iii) Chief Operating Officer, Technical Professionals 

Sharyn Page(iv) Company Secretary & Group General Counsel 

(i) Jim Walker joined SKILLED Group as a Non-Executive Director on 1 November 2013 

(ii) Johannes Risseeuw was appointed to the role of Chief Operating Officer, Engineering effective 1 January 2014 and subsequently to the role 

of Chief Operating Officer, Engineering & Offshore 

(iii) Jennifer Boulding was appointed to the role of Chief Operating Officer, Technical Professionals effective 1 October 2013 

(iv) Sharyn Page became a KMP effective 1 July 2013 

2. Remuneration governance 
The Board's objective is to ensure that SKILLED Group‘s remuneration strategy is aligned to the Company‘s strategy, to drive 
performance and behaviours in the Company‘s best interests and to deliver shareholder value.  Most of the remuneration matters 
are considered by the Remuneration Committee, which is a sub-committee of the Board. Pursuant to the terms of its charter, the 
Remuneration Committee considers the remuneration framework, levels and performance of the Chief Executive Officer (―CEO‖) 
and the CEO‘s direct reports as well as the general remuneration policies and practices for all staff. 

In carrying out its duties, the Remuneration Committee from time to time, draws on the services of independent remuneration 
consultants.  In the 2014 financial year the Committee obtained remuneration general market data from remuneration consultants.   
The Remuneration Committee forms its own independent decisions on executive remuneration. 

The overall remuneration strategy is reviewed by the Committee to ensure it meets the needs of the Company. 

3. Our remuneration principles and policy 
SKILLED Group‘s approach to executive remuneration is to have a remuneration framework in place that enables us to attract, 
retain, motivate and reward high performing executives in the Company's best interests and to deliver long term value to 
shareholders.  The executive remuneration principles are set by the Board and managed by the Remuneration Committee. 

 

The key principles which govern the Company‘s remuneration framework are to: 

 ensure remuneration outcomes are aligned to the drivers of the Company‘s success and the achievement of overall 
company and business unit objectives. 

 provide specific and measurable objectives under a balanced scorecard approach with targets set for the five pillars of 
safety, our people, financials, customers and operations. 

 ensure the total remuneration package is market competitive and provides the appropriate balance of fixed and variable 
remuneration.  
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Components of the senior executives' total remuneration include: 

 FIXED ANNUAL REMUNERATION SHORT-TERM INCENTIVE (STI) LONG-TERM INCENTIVE (LTI) 

Covers  All KMPs and Senior 

Executives 
 All KMPs and Senior 

Executives (excluding CEO) 
 All KMPs and Senior 

Executives 

Consists  

of: 
 Fixed cash salary 

 Superannuation 

 Salary sacrificed benefits 

 Annual cash incentive  Grants of performance 

rights or options over a 3 

year performance period 

Performance 

Measures 

  Targets linked to Company, 

business unit and individual 

performance outcomes 

 Performance hurdles are 

linked to EPS and relative 

TSR 

Rewards for:  Performance, skills and 

capability 
 Performance over a 12-

month period against agreed 

Company, business unit and 

individual performance  

 Growth in the Company‘s 

EPS 

 Relative TSR performance 

against peer group 

 

The chart below illustrates how the above elements of remuneration are used to reward the CEO and senior executives‘ in the 2014 
financial year remuneration using an "at target" remuneration package for each group.  The Board has discretion to provide other 
forms of incentive remuneration in appropriate circumstances. 

 

 

At stretch levels of performance a further 40% of the CEO‘s remuneration (at target) is available for LTI.  In the case of other senior 
executives, a further 22% of remuneration (at target) is available for STI and 22% for LTI, on average. 

A significant component of the senior executives' total remuneration is at risk in the form of short-term and long-term incentives.  
The Board & CEO sets clear performance targets for the senior executives directly aligned to five key areas of measurement 
across the Company: safety, our people, financials, customers and operations.  These five pillars are outlined in the table below. 

 

Balanced scorecard – five key pillars 

Safety Safety is a core value for SKILLED Group. Targets are set for each business and the Company as a whole to reduce the 

total recordable injury frequency rate (TRIFR), the all injury frequency rate (AIFR) and the lost time injury frequency rate 

(LTIFR). 

Our People People are the foundation of our business and our greatest asset.  Attracting, developing and retaining capable staff and field 

employees to meet the needs of our clients will continue our success as a market leader. Measures can vary between each 

business but may include staff retention and staff engagement. 

Financials Financial discipline is essential to enhance shareholder value.  Our targets are focused on: profitability; ensuring our cost 

base is appropriate; and working capital management. 

Customers As market leader, SKILLED Group is committed to building its customer base and delivering outstanding service to all 

customers. The Company has put in place measures across each business to assess our performance in delivering superior 

service to all our customers including customer profitability, customer satisfaction and customer retention. 

Operations Delivering improvements to our systems and procedures is a focus of all of our operations, supported by a centralised ‗back 

office‘ model to achieve operational efficiencies. Measures include processing efficiency and implementation of process 

improvements. 

Achievement of targets set for each of these five key pillars will deliver target remuneration and where senior executives deliver 
above target performance levels, they have the capacity to earn in excess of target remuneration.  
  

56% 

60% 

22% 22% 

40% 

0% 20% 40% 60% 80% 100% 120%

KMP

CEO

Fixed Remuneration STI LTI
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4. Executive remuneration components 
The remuneration components for senior executives are outlined in this section.  External benchmarking is undertaken annually, 
with information provided by independent remuneration consultants: 

 against executive remuneration practices within companies listed on the ASX with market capitalisation and revenues similar to 
that of the Company and/or within an industry sector in which it has operations;  

 with consideration for the market for organisations and positions of comparable size and complexity, sustained individual 
performance and competency levels, and importance to the business; and 

 within the Company to manage internal relativities. 

 
FIXED REMUNERATION 

The fixed remuneration consists of cash salary, any salary sacrifice items and employer superannuation. Fixed remuneration is 
targeted at the market median for executive roles having similar scope, accountability and complexity to those being reviewed.  

Fixed remuneration is reviewed annually against the benchmarks with any adjustment taking into consideration the individual 
performance, competency levels, and importance to the business. For particular cases, high performance, value and critical skills 
may result in fixed remuneration above the market median. 

SHORT-TERM INCENTIVE 

The SKILLED Group Executive Short-Term Incentive Plan ("STI Plan") has been established to provide competitive performance-
based remuneration incentives to senior executives. The STI Plan reflects a strong commitment towards attracting and retaining a 
high performing leadership team committed to the on-going success of SKILLED Group and the creation of shareholder value. 

A balanced scorecard is established for each eligible senior executive at the start of the performance year with clear objectives set 
to reflect each executive‘s potential impact on the business.  To provide consistent evaluation, individual performance and business 
performance are assessed against the same five key areas of measurement being safety, our people, financials, customers, and 
operations.  Under each of these five areas key performance indicators are established for each eligible executive at the start of the 
year, at each of the threshold, target and stretch levels. Through variable remuneration senior executives have the opportunity to 
earn more than target remuneration, should they achieve the stretch levels set out in the balanced scorecard. 

The threshold, target and stretch measures are based on the following performance levels. 

Measure Performance level 

Threshold Represents the minimum acceptable level of performance that needs to be achieved before any incentive 

payment is generated on the performance objective. 

Target Represents strong performance outcomes relative to past and otherwise expected achievements. 

Stretch Represents a clearly outstanding level of performance. 

 

Under the STI Plan, the Board retains discretion to increase or decrease incentive payments to take account of significant events 
and/or other factors that were not anticipated when the targets were established.  The STI Plan is not the exclusive method of 
providing incentive remuneration for employees of SKILLED Group and the Board has discretion to provide other forms of incentive 
remuneration in appropriate circumstances. 

LONG-TERM INCENTIVE 

The Long-Term Incentive Plan ("LTI Plan") provides flexibility in delivering long-term incentive awards to executives in the form of 
performance rights or options. The LTI Plan is designed to retain executives with key skills and to align the interests of participants 
with the interests of the Company and shareholders.  

 

LTI Plan Participants

  

The LTI Plan is open to senior executives and other key individuals who make a significant contribution to the success of 

the Company.  Participation in the plan, which is approved by the Board, is based on sustained individual performance 

and value to the Company. 

Type of Awards Under the LTI Plan it is possible for the Board to grant performance rights or options over SKILLED Group ordinary 

shares.  The performance rights and options do not confer a right to vote. The vesting of awards is subject to 

performance hurdles which are outlined in Section 5. 

Performance 

Measures  

Under the LTI Plan the awards are granted subject to performance conditions based on Earnings Per Share ("EPS") and 

relative Total Shareholder Return ("TSR"). These two performance measures operate independently under a 50/50 split 

on grant.  Under the Plan, EPS is defined as Earnings per Share excluding profit or loss on divestment of businesses 

and any non-cash items associated with the acquisition, divestment or restructure of any business. For the calculation of 

TSR, the peer group is the ASX200 excluding financial institutions and including key competitors.   

Prior to 2011, the grants awarded under the LTI Plan were subject only to EPS performance hurdles. 

Performance Period 

  

The performance period is generally three years, determined at the time of grant by the Board and if the performance 

hurdles are satisfied the awards will vest. In the case of performance rights, upon vesting the participant will be entitled to 

one SKILLED Group ordinary share for each performance right.  For grants made to the CEO in the 2014 financial year 

and onwards, 50% of any grant that vests is required to be retained by the CEO  for two years. 
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Cessation of 

Employment 

The LTI Plan Rules provide the Board with discretion in relation to the treatment of performance rights or options held by 

employees who cease employment.  Subject to the exercise of that discretion in any particular case, the following 

principles apply: 

If the employee ceases to be employed as the result of total & permanent disability, retirement, redundancy or such other 

circumstances where the Board determines the employee to be a ―good leaver‖, the employee will be eligible to retain 

unvested performance rights and options on a pro-rata basis, in line with their period of service during the performance 

period for those performance rights or options (rounded up or down to the nearest whole year). The remaining 

performance rights or options lapse. 

If an employee resigns, any unvested performance rights or options will, subject to Board discretion, lapse.   

If an employee is dismissed with cause, any unvested options or performance rights will lapse. 

Any employee who ceases employment and retains options which subsequently vest has 6 months from the date of 

vesting to exercise the options, otherwise they will lapse. 

Hedging Policy SKILLED Group has a policy which prohibits any portion of a grant that has not vested to be hedged using financial 

products designed to eliminate risk of price movement in the underlying share. Any breach of this policy can result in the 

Board taking disciplinary action which may result in immediate forfeiture of any portion of any grant that has not yet 

vested or been exercised, or other disciplinary action. 

Forfeiture / Claw 

back  

The LTI Plan provides the Board absolute discretion to forfeit, claw back or withhold a grant where the Board becomes 

aware a participant has acted fraudulently, dishonestly and/or made a material misstatement on behalf of SKILLED.  The 

Board does not apply a purely formulaic approach to vesting outcomes which ensures any benefit a participant receives, 

as a current or former participant, reflects the participant‘s contribution to SKILLED‘s long term performance.  

Decisions to grant performance rights and options are made by the Board based on recommendations of the Remuneration 
Committee.   

5. Executive remuneration outcomes 
The remuneration for senior executives for the year ended 30 June 2014 is set out below. Please refer to section 6 for further 
details regarding the remuneration structure for senior executives including the Chief Executive Officer 

FIXED REMUNERATION 

The remuneration of senior executives is reviewed annually and any increase to fixed remuneration, as a result of the review, is 
applied effective 1 September for the CEO and 1 October for other senior executives. Consideration is given to pay market 
movements for organisations and positions of comparable size and complexity, sustained individual performance and competence 
levels, and importance to the business.  

SHORT-TERM INCENTIVES 

The variable remuneration outcomes are linked with the performance of the individual and the Company against the key objectives 
set out in the balanced scorecard for each business unit.   

In the 2014 financial year, SKILLED Group did not meet the target performance measures at a Group level.  No incentives were 
achieved in the financial year for the executive directors and other key management personnel outlined in the table below. 

 

Short-Term Incentive Plan 

% of Fixed Remuneration 

STI 

Achieved 

STI  

not achieved 

Maximum STI that  

could be achieved 

Gary Kent – 80% 80% 

David Timmel – 80% 80% 

Johannes Risseeuw  – 80% 80% 

Jennifer Boulding – 40% 40% 

Sharyn Page – 40% 40% 

Note: Mr McMahon‘s remuneration structure consists of fixed remuneration and participation in the LTI Plan.  No STI is 
available to Mr McMahon.  For further details refer to section 6 of this report.  

LONG-TERM INCENTIVES 

2014 Financial Year 

During the year, 1,859,000 performance rights and 1,750,000 options over SKILLED Group shares have been granted under the LTI 
plan to a number of executives.  Performance rights granted with a performance period from 1 July 2013 through to 30 June 2016 
were calculated based on the volume weighted average share price of SKILLED Group ordinary shares for the five days 
commencing on 15 August 2013 (being one day after the announcement of the 2013 financial year full year results).  
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Options and performance rights granted during the year were valued using Black-Scholes option pricing methodology. The 
following table lists the inputs to the models used for grants of options and performance rights under the LTIP Plan. 

 Options Performance 
Rights 

Grant date share price ($) 3.24 3.24 

Exercise price ($) 3.08 N/A 

Expected volatility (%) 35.0 35.0 

Life (years)  6 3 

Dividend yield (%) 6.0 6.0 

Risk free interest rate (%) 2.93 2.93 

 

The performance hurdles for the performance rights and options are set out below. 

EPS 3 year performance period  

1 July 2013 – 30 June 2016 
% to vest 

Less than 6% Compound Annual 

Growth (CAGR) 
0% 

6% CAGR 25% 

Between 6% and 8% CAGR Pro rata 

8% CAGR 50% 

Between 8% and 10% CAGR Pro rata 

10% CAGR 
100% of grant assessed under 

EPS performance measure 

  

Relative TSR 3 year performance 

period 1 July 2013 – 30 June 2016 
% to vest 

Below 50th Percentile 0% 

50th Percentile 50% 

Between 50th and  

75th Percentile 
Pro rata 

75th Percentile 
100% of grant assessed  

under Relative TSR measure 

 

In the 2014 financial year, SKILLED also issued 229,000 retention performance rights to selected senior executives to retain key 
skills during the integration of Thomas & Coffey.  These retention performance rights may vest between 3 February 2015 and 3 
February 2016, subject to the satisfaction of time and performance based vesting conditions. 

During the 2014 financial year, 1,679,938 options and 204,977 performance rights vested in relation to the LTI Plan awarded in the 
2011 Financial Year with a performance period of 1 July 2011 to 30 June 2013.  Also during the year 337,838 performance rights 
vested in relation to the CEO Co-investment scheme (Tranche 1) with a performance period ending 30 September 2013. 

2015 Financial Year 

In the 2011 financial year, Mr McMahon was granted 675,676 performance rights on his commencement under a co-investment 
scheme with a vesting date of 30 September 2013 for 50% of the rights and 30 September 2014 for the remaining 50%.  On 30 
September 2013, 337,838 performance rights vested and were allocated to Mr McMahon in the 2014 financial year.  On 30 
September 2014 the balance of the co-investment scheme will be tested.  Given the performance measures have been met, 100% 
of the 337,838 performance rights eligible to vest on 30 September 2014 will vest, subject to Mr McMahon continuing to hold his 
Co-investment shares in the Company until 30 September 2014 and remaining employed by SKILLED Group on this date.   

In 2012 financial year, performance rights were granted to Mr McMahon and other executives under the LTI Plan.  The 
performance rights with an EPS performance measure vested at 40% and those with a relative TSR performance measure vested 
at 86%. 
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The performance hurdles for the LTI grants and the vesting outcome are as follows:  

EPS Performance Measure 

Performance level 3 year cumulative EPS  

1 July 2011 – 30 June 2014 

% to vest 

Below threshold Below 62 cents per share (cps) 0% 

Threshold 62 cps 25% 

Between threshold & 

target 

Between 62 and 70 cps Pro rata 

Target 70 cps 50% 

Between target & stretch Between 70 and 76 cps Pro rata 

Stretch 76 cps 100% of grant assessed under EPS 

performance measure 

   

Actual performance   

Between threshold & 

target 

66.7 cps1 40% 

1
EPS for the purposes of the 1 July 2011 – 30 June 2014 LTIP plan is based on reported EPS of 21.1cps in 2012, 24.1cps in 2013 

and reported EPS adjusted for non-cash acquisition accounting items in 2014 of 21.5cps.  Non cash acquisition accounting items in 
2014 are amortisation of acquired intangibles of $4.9m after tax and notional interest on deferred acquisition payments of $1.3m 
after tax.  Reported NPAT in 2014 was $44.2m (EPS 18.9cps) while NPAT excluding these items was $50.4m (EPS 21.5cps). 

TSR Performance Measure 

Performance level 3 year relative total  

shareholder returns (TSR) 

1 July 2011 – 30 June 2014 

% to vest 

Below threshold Below 50th Percentile 0% 

Threshold 50th Percentile 50% 

Between threshold & 

target 

Between 50th and  

75th Percentile 

Pro rata 

Target 75th Percentile 100% of grant assessed  

under Relative TSR measure 

   

Actual performance   

Target 68th Percentile 86% 

 

The following table is a summary of key performance and shareholder wealth statistics for the consolidated entity over the past five 
years; this includes the reported net profit after tax (―NPAT‖) and the reported earnings per share (―EPS‖). 

 

Financial year NPAT$ million Earnings per share (cents) 

Total dividends per share 

(cents) Share price @ 30 June ($) 

2014 44.2 18.9 17.0 2.30 

2013 56.2 24.1 16.0 2.57 

2012 49.3 21.1 13.0 2.37 

2011 3.1 1.6 3.0 2.24 

2010 12.7 7.3 – 1.09 
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6. Senior executive contracts of employment  
The general details of the contracts for senior executives are outlined below. The individual contracts may differ on occasions to suit 
particular needs.  

Contract Item Terms 

Length of contract Open ended. 

Fixed Remuneration The fixed remuneration comprises cash salary, any salary sacrifice items and employer 
superannuation. Any fringe benefit tax liability with respect to benefits is borne by the employee and 
included as part of the fixed remuneration. 

Executive Short-Term 
Incentive Plan (STI Plan) 

Eligible to participate. Incentive criteria and award opportunities vary for each executive. 

Long-Term Incentive Plan 
(LTI Plan) 

Eligible to participate. Award opportunities may vary for each executive.  

Refer to Section 4 and 5 for further details on the Long-Term Incentive Plan. 

Notice period The Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have a notice period up to twelve months, while 
key management personnel have a notice period up to six months. 

Resignation Employment may be terminated by giving notice consistent with the notice period. 

Retirement  There are no financial entitlements due from the Company on the retirement of an executive. The 
Board does have discretion to make ex-gratia payments. 

Termination on notice by 
the Company 

SKILLED may terminate the employment agreement by providing notice consistent with the notice 
period or payment in lieu of the notice period. 

Redundancy  Payments for redundancy are discretionary and determined having regard to the particular circumstances. 
While there are no contractual commitments to pay redundancy, the Remuneration Committee has 
adopted guidelines to ensure consistent and equitable practices are applied. 

Death or total and 
permanent disablement 

Same principles as for retirement. 

In addition, the Company currently has salary continuance insurance cover for senior executives. Any 
benefits paid under this policy will be provided to the executive or his/her estate. 

Termination for serious 
misconduct 

The Company may terminate the employment agreement at any time without notice, and the executive 
will be entitled to payment of fixed remuneration only up to the date of termination. 
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Chief Executive Officer – Mick McMahon 
The following summary provides an outline of the contract details and remuneration package for the Chief Executive Officer, Mr 
McMahon. 

 

Remuneration Item Terms 

 Fixed Remuneration: The annual fixed remuneration in respect of the 2014 financial year is $1,500,000 inclusive of 
superannuation, effective 1 September 2013, which is fixed for three years.  

Long-Term Incentives The CEO is eligible to participate in the LTI Plan. The Board determines the performance and vesting 
criteria for each grant.  

2012 Financial Year Grant: 

Mr McMahon was issued with 569,948 performance rights in the 2012 financial year. The number of the 
performance rights was based on the volume weighted average share price of SKILLED Group ordinary 
shares over the five days commencing on 25 August 2011 (being one day after the announcement of 
the 2011 full year results). 

The rights vest upon achievement of two separate performance conditions, EPS and relative TSR, 
which operate independently under a 50/50 split. For relative TSR the peer group is the ASX200 
excluding financial institutions and including key competitors.  This award vested at 40% for 
performance rights based on the EPS performance measure and 86% for performance rights with a 
relative TSR measure.  Refer to Section 5 for further details on the achievement of performance 
measures in relation to these grants. 

2013 Financial Year grant: 

Mr McMahon was issued with 266,160 performance rights in the 2013 financial year. The number of the 
performance rights was based on the volume weighted average share price of SKILLED Group ordinary 
shares over the five days commencing on 23 August 2012 (being one day after the announcement of 
the 2012 full year results).  The rights vest upon achievement of two separate performance conditions, 
EPS and relative TSR, which operate independently under a 50/50 split. For relative TSR the peer 
group is the ASX200 excluding financial institutions and including key competitors.   

2014 Financial Year grant: 

Mr McMahon was issued with 1,750,000 options and 325,000 performance rights in the 2014 financial 
year. The number of performance rights issued was based on the volume weighted average share price 
of SKILLED Group ordinary shares over the five days commencing on 15 August 2013 (being one day 
after the announcement of the 2013 full year results) (―VWAP Calculation‖).  The number of options 
issued was based on a Black Scholes option valuation methodology with the exercise price based on 
the VWAP Calculation.  The options have a term of six years from the date of issue, with vesting 
determined after the completion of the 3 year performance period.   

The options and/or performance rights will vest upon achievement of two separate performance 
conditions, EPS and relative TSR, which operate independently under a 50/50 split. For relative TSR 
the peer group is the ASX200 excluding financial institutions and including key competitors.  

2015 Financial Year grant: 

In line with Mr McMahon‘s employment contract, options or performance rights (comprising at least 
50% options), will, subject to approval by shareholders at the 2014 AGM, be issued to Mr McMahon for 
a total value equal to133% of fixed annual remuneration of $1,500,000 representing the maximum 
vesting at stretch levels of performance. 

The number of performance rights to be issued will be based on the volume weighted average share 
price of SKILLED Group ordinary shares over the five days commencing on 14 August 2014 (being one 
day after the announcement of the 2014 full year results) (―VWAP Calculation‖). 

The number of options to be issued will be based on a Black Scholes option valuation methodology with 
the exercise price based on the VWAP Calculation.  The options will have a term of six years from the 
date of issue, with vesting determined after the completion of the 3 year performance period.   

The options and/or performance rights will vest upon achievement of two separate performance 
conditions, EPS and relative TSR.  
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Remuneration Item Terms 

Co-investment scheme: To align the Chief Executive Officer‘s interests with those of shareholders, SKILLED Group established 
a CEO co-investment agreement. Pursuant to this agreement Mr McMahon purchased $1 million worth 
of SKILLED Group shares in November 2010. 

In accordance with the terms of his employment contract, Mr McMahon was granted 675,676 
performance rights (each being a right to one SKILLED Group ordinary share) and was determined by 
dividing the amount invested in SKILLED Group shares by the CEO by $1.48 being the five day volume 
weighted average share price prior to (and not including) the date of announcement of appointment as 
Chief Executive Officer.  

On 30 September 2013, 337,838 performance rights vested and were allocated to Mr McMahon in the 
2014 financial year. 

On 30 September 2014 the balance of the co-investment scheme will be tested.  The three year 
cumulative EPS from 1 July 2011 – 30 June 2014 was 71.1 cents per share, based on underlying EPS 
for purposes of the CEO Co-investment scheme, which is greater than the target EPS of 70.0 cents per 
share.  As such, 100% of the 337,838 performance rights eligible to vest on 30 September 2014 will 
vest, subject to Mr McMahon continuing to hold his Co-investment shares in the Company until 30 
September 2014 and remaining employed by SKILLED Group on this date.  
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7. Remuneration tables 
The tables below are provided as per the disclosure requirements under the Corporations Act, Section 300A and the requirement 
of the accounting standards AASB 124. The remuneration tables below disclose the remuneration for the executive directors and 
key management personnel for the 2013 and 2014 financial years. 

Current key management personnel  

Name Title Year 

Short-term employee benefits 

Super- 

annuation 

 

Equity 

 settled 

share-based 

 payment 

Termi- 

nation 

benefits Total 

Proportion 

of total  

that is 

perform-

ance 

related Fixed(i) 

Short-

term 

incentive 

Non-

monetary 
(ii) 

Other  

short-

term 

benefit 

 

 

Long-term 

employee 

benefits 

Mick 

McMahon 

Chief 

Executive 

Officer 

(Executive 

Director) 

   2014 1,487,586 – 16,338 – 17,775 – 581,209 – 2,102,908 28% 

2013 1,115,856 – 13,594 – 19,404 
– 

810,407 – 1,959,261 41% 

Gary Kent  Chief 

Financial 

Officer  

2014 578,080 – 5,425 – 25,109 – 107,906 – 716,520 15% 

2013 555,945 – 3,766 – 32,882 – 57,694 – 650,287 9% 

David 

Timmel   

Chief 

Operating 

Officer, 

Workforce 

Services 

2014 400,689 – 2,911 60,848 21,360 
– 

90,249 – 576,057 16% 

2013 357,328 – 1,366 10,496 22,557 
– 

35,547 – 427,294 8% 

Johannes 

Risseeuw 
(iii) 

Chief 

Operating 

Officer, 

Engineering 

& Offshore 

2014 210,261 – 4,708 – 8,887 

 

– 
33,585 – 257,441 13% 

2013 – – – – – 

 

– – – – – 

Jennifer 

Boulding(iv) 

Chief 

Operating 

Officer, 

Technical 

Professionals 

2014 277,654 – 5,859 – 13,331 

 

– 28,267 – 325,111 9% 

2013 – – – – – 

 

– – – – – 

Sharyn 

Page(v) 

Company 

Secretary & 

Group 

General 

Counsel 

2014 343,340 – 4,776 – 25,875 
– 

17,520 – 391,511 4% 

2013 – – – – – 
– 

– – – – 

Total 2014 3,297,610 – 40,017 60,848 112,337 – 858,736 – 4,369,548  

2013 2,029,129 – 18,726 10,496 74,843 – 903,648 – 3,036,842  

(i) Fixed includes fixed cash, and annual and long service leave accruals. 

(ii) Non-monetary items include benefits provided under a salary sacrifice arrangement. 

(iii) Johannes Risseeuw was appointed to the role of Chief Operating Officer, Engineering effective 1 January 2014 and subsequently to the role of 

Chief Operating Officer, Engineering & Offshore. Mr Risseeuw‘s annual fixed short term employee benefit, including superannuation, is $450,000. 

(iv) Jennifer Boulding was appointed to the role of Chief Operating Officer, Technical Professionals effective 1 October 2013. Ms Boulding‘s annual 

fixed short term employee benefit, including superannuation, is $340,000. 

(v) Sharyn Page became a KMP effective 1 July 2013 
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Former key management personnel 
(i) 

Name Title Year 

Short-term employee benefits 

Super- 

annuation 

  

Termi- 

nation 

benefits Total 

Proportion of 

total  

that is 

performance 

related  Fixed(ii) 

Short-

term 

incentive 

Non-

monetary 

Other  

short-term 

benefit 

Long-term 

employee 

benefits 

 Equity 

 settled 

 share- 

 based  

payment(iii) 

Paul 

McCormick 

Executive 

General 

Manager, 

Eastern 

Region 

2014 – – – – – – – – – – 

2013 573,367  23,588 34,351 112,683 (9,399) 27,971  762,561 2% 

John 

Watkinson 
(iv) 

Executive 

General 

Manager, 

Technical 

Profession

als 

2014 88,178 – – – 4,444 – 2,393 99,998 195,013 1% 

2013  367,767 –  535 –  16,470 (8,779)  29,479 –  405,472 5% 

Matt 

Caulfield (v) 

Executive  

General 

Manager, 

Transform

ation 

2014 – – – – – – – – – – 

2013  320,694 –  3,964 –  16,470 (4,534)  37,721 –  374,315 9% 

Total  2014 88,178 – – – 4,444 – 2,393 99,998 195,013  

2013  1,261,828 – 28,087 34,351  145,623 (22,712)  95,171 –  1,542,348  

(i) Matt Caulfield and John Watkinson were disclosed as key management personnel in the remuneration tables for the 2013 financial year.   

(ii) Fixed includes fixed cash and annual and long service leave accruals. 

(iii) Long-term employee benefits that are negative amounts reflecting the write back of amortised LTI Plan grants due to performance criteria no 

longer expected to be met. 

(iv)  John Watkinson ceased employment with SKILLED Group effective on 30 September 2013 

(v) Matt Caulfield ceased being a KMP in the 2013 financial year 
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8. Non-Executive Directors‘ remuneration 
Non-executive directors‘ fees are reviewed annually and are determined by the Board based on recommendations from the 
Remuneration Committee. In making its recommendations the Remuneration Committee considers the level of remuneration 
required to attract and retain non-executive directors to the SKILLED Group Board and seeks market information from independent 
consultants. The fees are set at levels that fairly represent the responsibilities of, and the time spent by, the non-executive directors 
on SKILLED Group matters. 

In the 2014 financial year the Board increased the non-executive directors‘ fees with effect from 1 September 2013 as outlined in 
the table below.  These fees were last increased in July 2011 and before that in October 2006.  In establishing the non-executive 
director‘s fees the Board reviewed data on companies listed on the ASX with market capitalisation and revenues similar to that of 
SKILLED and/or within industries in which SKILLED has operations.  Non-executive directors‘ fees are within the maximum 
aggregate limit of $900,000 per annum agreed to by shareholders at the Annual General Meeting held on 13 October 2007.   

The fees paid to non-executive directors are: 

Role September 2013 – 

June 2014 

July – August 2013 

Chairman $240,000 $200,000 

Chairman of Audit and Risk Committee $135,000 $120,000 

Chairman of Remuneration Committee $125,000 $100,000 

Non-Executive Director $110,000 $100,000 

 

Directors may elect to take all or part of their fees in cash or nominated benefits. Benefits that can be packaged by non-executive 
directors include novated car leases and additional superannuation contributions. The Company does not operate any equity plans 
for, or pay any performance based incentives to, non-executive directors. Non-executive directors are entitled to statutory 
superannuation. Amounts paid for statutory superannuation are included as part of the directors‘ fees. There are no other schemes 
for retirement benefits for non-executive directors. This is consistent with Principle 9.3 of the Australian Stock Exchange (ASX) 
Corporate Governance Guidelines. 

 

Please see the Non-Executive Directors' Remuneration tables below which disclose the remuneration for the Non-Executive 
Directors for the financial years 2013 and 2014. 

 

Name Title Year 
Non-Executive 

director fees 
Superannuation Total 

Non-Executive Directors 

Vickki McFadden Chairman of the Board  2014 215,699 17,634 233,333 

2013 183,530 16,470 200,000 

Bob Herbert AM  Non-Executive Director, 

Chairman Remuneration 

Committee 

2014 120,833 – 120,833 

2013 100,000  – 100,000 

Max Findlay  Non-Executive Director  2014 99,158 9,175 108,333 

2013 91,743 8,257 100,000 

Tony Cipa Non-Executive Director, 

Chairman Audit and Risk 

Committee  

2014 121,281 11,219 132,500 

2013 110,092 9,908 120,000 

Tracey Horton Non-Executive Director  2014 99,158 9,175 108,333 

2013 91,743 8,257 100,000 

Jim Walker (i) Non-Executive Director  2014 67,124 6,209 73,333 

2013 – – – 

Total  2014 723,253 53,412 776,665 

2013 577,108 42,892 620,000 

(i)Jim Walker joined SKILLED Group as a Non-Executive Director on 1 November 2013 
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9. Directors‘ and other Key Management Personnel equity holdings 

(i) Fully paid ordinary shares issued by SKILLED Group Limited held by directors and other key management personnel including 
their personally related parties are outline in the table below. 

2014 

Balance  

1/7/2013 

No. 

Granted as 
compen-

sation 

No. 

Received on 
exercise of 

options/rights 

No. 

Net other 
change  

No. 

Balance at 
30/6/2014 

No. 

Balance held 
nominally 

No. 

Directors 

Mick McMahon 667,501 – 1,720,970 (1,383,132) (i) 1,005,339 – 

Vickki McFadden 126,885 – – – 126,885 – 

Bob Herbert AM 13,054 – – – 13,054 – 

Max Findlay 35,000 – – – 35,000 – 

Tony Cipa 15,544 – – – 15,544 – 

Tracey Horton – – – – – – 

Jim Walker
(i)

 – – – – – – 

Other key management personnel 

Gary Kent 20,000 – – 20,000 40,000 – 

David Timmel – – – – – – 

Johannes Risseeuw
(ii)

 – – – 26,600 26,600 – 

Jennifer Boulding
(iii)

 – – – – – – 

Sharyn Page
(iv)

 – – – – – – 

Former key management personnel       

John Watkinson
(v)

 41,000 – 15,136 (56,136) – – 

Total 918,984 – 1,736,106 (1,392,668) (ii) 1,262,422 – 

(i) Jim Walker joined SKILLED Group as a Non-Executive Director on 1 November 2013 
(ii) Johannes Risseeuw was appointed to the role of Chief Operating Officer, Engineering effective 1 January 2014 and subsequently to the role of 

Chief Operating Officer, Engineering & Offshore. 
(iii) Jennifer Boulding was appointed to the role of Chief Operating Officer, Technical Professionals effective 1 October 2013 
(iv) Sharyn Page became a KMP effective 1 July 2013 
(v) John Watkinson ceased employment with SKILLED Group effective on 30 September 2013 
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(ii) Equity-settled share-based payments issued to, exercised by and lapsed for executive directors and key management personnel
 

during the year ended 30 June 2014 are outlined in the table below.  

2014 

Balance at 

1/7/2013 

No. 

Granted as 

compensation 

No. 

Vested No. Lapsed No. 

Other  

Change  

No. 

Balance at 

30/6/2014 

No. 

Balance 

vested at 

30/6/2014 

No. 

Balance 

exercisable 

at 

30/6/2014 

No. 

Options 

vested 

during year 

No. 

Directors 

Mick McMahon 3,354,377 2,075,000 (1,720,970) (459,461) - 3,248,946 - - 1,383,132 

Key management personnel 

Gary Kent 176,000 256,000 - - - 432,000 - - - 

David Timmel 132,684 204,000 - - - 336,684 - - - 

Johannes Risseeuw(i) - 50,000 - - 258,000 308,000 - - - 

Jennifer Boulding (ii) - 92,000 - - 50,000 142,000 - - - 

Sharyn Page (iii) - 48,000 - - - 48,000 - - - 

Former key management personnel 

John Watkinson(iv) 319,244 - (15,136) (229,611) (74,497) - - - - 

Total 3,982,305 2,725,000 (1,736,106) (689,072) 233,503 4,515,630   1,383,132 

(i) Johannes Risseeuw was appointed to the role of Chief Operating Officer, Engineering effective 1 January 2014 and subsequently to the role of 

Chief Operating Officer, Engineering & Offshore. 

(ii) Jennifer Boulding was appointed to the role of Chief Operating Officer, Technical Professionals effective 1 October 2013 
(iii) Sharyn Page became a KMP effective 1 July 2013 
(iv) John Watkinson ceased employment with SKILLED Group effective on 30 September 2013 

For a table of changes in share based arrangements during the financial year please refer to Note 19 of the financial statements. 

 

(iii) Transactions with related parties 

Vickki McFadden was a director of Leighton Holdings Ltd from June 2013 to May 2014.  Leighton Holdings Ltd is a SKILLED Group 
customer and transacts on normal commercial terms and conditions. 

Max Findlay is a director of Royal Children‘s Hospital, Melbourne.  Royal Children‘s Hospital, Melbourne is a SKILLED Group 
customer and transacts on normal commercial terms and conditions. 

 

 

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the directors made pursuant to Section 298(2) of the Corporations Act 2001. 

 

On behalf of the directors, 

 

 

 

 

 

      

VA McFadden MP McMahon  

Chairman Chief Executive Officer 
 and Managing Director 

13 August 2014 
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FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2014 

 

In accordance with a resolution of the directors of Skilled Group Limited (‗the Company‘), we state that: 

 

1. In the opinion of the directors: 

 

a) the financial statements and notes of Skilled Group Limited for the financial year ended 30 June 2014 are in 
accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, including: 

 

(i) giving a true and fair view of its financial position as at 30 June 2014 and its performance for the year ended 
on that date, and  

(ii) complying with Accounting Standards and Corporations Regulations 2001; 

 

b) the financial statements and notes are in compliance with International Financial Reporting Standards, as stated in 
note 2 to the financial statements; and 

 

c) there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company will be able to pay its debts as and when they become 
due and payable. 

 

This declaration has been made after receiving the declarations required to be made to the directors in accordance with s.295 A 
of the Corporations Act 2001. 

 

At the date of this declaration, the Company is within the class of companies affected by ASIC Class Order 98/1418 and has 
entered into a deed of cross guarantee as contemplated in that class order.  The nature of the deed of cross guarantee is such that 
each company which is party to the deed guarantees to each creditor payment in full of any debt in accordance with the deed of 
cross guarantee. 

 

In the directors‘ opinion, there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company and the companies to which the ASIC Class 
Order applies, as detailed in note 24 to the financial statements will, as a group, be able to meet any obligations or liabilities to 
which they are, or may become subject, by virtue of the deed of cross guarantee. 

 

On behalf of the directors, 

 

 

      

 

 

 

VA McFadden    MP McMahon  
Chairman    Chief Executive Officer 
     and Managing Director 

 

13 August 2014 
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For the financial year ended 30 June 2014 

2014 2013 

Note $‘000 $‘000 
    

Revenue 4(a) 1,869,569 1,868,192 

Equity-accounted income from associates 4(b) 3,749 5,701 

Other income 4(c) 212 325 

Employee and sub-contractor related costs  (1,667,450) (1,690,563) 

Raw materials and consumables used  (19,054) (6,332) 

Office occupancy related costs  (15,501) (11,670) 

Profit from sale of assets 5 195 103 

Marine vessel charter and related costs  (14,382) (12,133) 

Other expenses  (70,145) (61,964) 

Depreciation and amortisation expenses 4(d) (16,980) (10,379) 

Finance costs 4(d) (9,646) (4,099) 

Profit before income tax expense  60,567 77,181 

Income tax expense  6 (16,367) (21,022) 

Profit for the year  44,200 56,159 

Other comprehensive income    
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit/(loss):    

Net movement on cash flow hedges  20(b) 93 509 

Change in foreign currency translation reserve arising on translation of 
foreign operations and net investment in foreign subsidiaries 

20(c) 571 1,171 

Income tax on items that maybe reclassified subsequently to profit/(loss) 20(b) (28) (153) 

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax   636 1,527 

Total comprehensive income for the year  44,836 57,686 

Profit attributable to members of the parent entity  44,200 56,159 

Total comprehensive income attributable to members of 
the parent entity 

 
44,836 57,686 

 
Earnings per share    
Basic earnings per share (cents) 29 18.86 24.05 

Diluted earnings per share (cents) 29 18.51 23.27 

 

The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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As at 30 June 2014 

2014 2013 

Note $‘000 $‘000 
Current assets    
Cash and short-term deposits 27 7,858 12,890 

Receivables 8 254,907 210,849 

Inventories  821 412 

Other assets 9 6,264 5,510 

Total current assets  269,850 229,661 

Non-current assets    
Receivables 8 2,627 1,688 

Property, plant and equipment 10 88,131 18,085 

Equity accounted investments 12 22,882 33,274 

Intangibles 11  472,007 386,335 

Deferred tax assets 13 17,602 15,677 

Total non-current assets  603,249 455,059 

Total assets  873,099 684,720 

Current liabilities    
Payables 14 123,571 94,209 

Borrowings 15 5,006 1,294 

Current tax liabilities  3,577 4,163 

Other financial liabilities  – 110 

Provisions 16 49,432 43,616 

Total current liabilities  181,586 143,392 

Non-current liabilities    
Payables 14 20,107 – 

Borrowings 15 172,924 56,413 

Provisions 16 19,685 13,009 

Total non-current liabilities  212,716 69,422 

Total liabilities  394,302 212,814 

Net assets  478,797 471,906 

Equity    
Issued capital 18 352,986 349,661 

Reserves 20 166 2,138 

Retained earnings  125,645 120,107 

Total equity  478,797 471,906 
 

The above consolidated statement of financial position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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For the financial year ended 30 June 2014 

2014 2013 

                                                  Note                       $‘000 $‘000 
Cash flows from operating activities    
Profit before taxation   60,567 77,181 

Depreciation and amortisation   16,980 10,379 

Interest revenue 4(c) (212) (325) 

Interest expense 4(d) 9,646 4,099 

Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation from 
continuing and discontinued operations  86,981 91,334 

Non-Cash Items    

Share based payments  1,701 814 
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment 5 (195) (103) 

Non-cash equity accounted income from an associate 4(b) (3,749) (5,701) 

  84,738 86,344 

Increase/Decrease in assets and liabilities excluding effects 
of acquisitions and divestments:    

(Increase)/Decrease in receivables  (15,503) 25,073 

(Increase)/Decrease in inventories  455 122 

(Increase)/Decrease in other assets  15,126 1,325 

Increase/(Decrease) in payables  1,913 (12,225) 

Increase/(Decrease) in provisions  (5,814) (10,949) 

Cash generated from operations  80,915 89,690 

Income taxes paid  (20,235) (27,783) 

Net cash provided by operating activities  60,680 61,907 

Cash flows from investing activities    
Payments for property, plant and equipment  (46,530) (9,786) 

Payments for intangibles  (4,459) (1,480) 

Proceeds from the divestment of businesses (net of sale costs)  – 1,200 

Payments for purchase of equity-accounted investments 12 –  (17,500) 

Payments for purchase of businesses (net of cash acquired) 22 (77,993) (9,508) 

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment  1,309 992 

Net cash used in investing activities  (127,673) (36,082) 

Cash flows from financing activities    
Proceeds from borrowings  694,507 485,674 

Repayment of borrowings  (585,038) (471,338) 

Interest received  212 190 

Interest paid  (7,432) (4,093) 

Net (payments)/proceeds from issues of equity  (1,484) 222 

Dividends paid 7 (38,662) (35,046) 

Net cash from/(used in) financing activities  62,103 (24,391) 

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents  (4,890) 1,434 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year  12,261 10,532 
Effects of exchange rate changes on cash held in foreign currencies  19 295 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial year 27 7,390 12,261 

 

The above consolidated cash flow statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.  
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For the financial year ended 30 June 2014 

Employee 
Foreign equity- 

currency   settled 

Issued  translation  Hedging  benefits  Retained 

capital  reserve reserve reserve earnings Total 

$‘000  $‘000  $‘000  $‘000  $‘000  $‘000 

2014       
Balance at 1 July 2013 349,661  (1,296)   (65) 3,499   120,107  471,906 

Profit for the year – – – – 44,200 44,200 

Exchange differences arising on translation 
of foreign operations 

– 571 – – – 571 

Net gain on cash flow hedges – – 93 – – 93 

Income tax relating to components of other 
comprehensive income 

– – (28) – – (28) 

Total comprehensive income for the year – 571 65 – 44,200 44,836 

Own shares acquired to settle share 
based payments 

(1,204) – – (2,472) –  (3,676) 

Share based payments 4,529 – – (136) – 4,393 

Payment of dividends – – – – (38,662) (38,662) 

Balance at 30 June 2014 352,986  (725) – 891   125,645  478,797 

2013       
Balance at 1 July 2012 349,500 (2,467) (421) 2,980 98,699 448,291 

Profit for the year – – – – 56,159 56,159 

Exchange differences arising on translation 
of foreign operations 

– 1,171 – – – 1,171 

Net gain on cash flow hedges – – 509 – – 509 

Income tax relating to components of other 
comprehensive income 

– – (153) – – (153) 

Total comprehensive income for the year – 1,171 356 – 56,159  57,686 

Issue of shares (net of costs) 161 – – – – 161 

Share based payments – – –        814 –  814 

Lapse of Executive Long Term Incentive plan – – – (295) 295 – 

Payment of dividends – – – – (35,046) (35,046) 

Balance at 30 June 2013 349,661  (1,296)   (65) 3,499   120,107  471,906 

 

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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1. Corporate information 

SKILLED Group Limited (―SKILLED‖ or ―the Company‖) is a for profit company limited by shares incorporated in 
Australia whose shares are publicly traded on the Australian Stock Exchange.  

The nature of the operations and principal activities of SKILLED and its controlled entities (―the Consolidated Entity‖) are 
described in the directors‘ report. 

The consolidated financial statements of the Consolidated Entity for the year ended 30 June 2014 were authorised for 
issue by the directors on 13 August 2014. 

2. Significant accounting policies 

2.1 Basis of preparation 

The financial report is a general purpose financial report prepared in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, Accounting 
Standards and other authoritative pronouncements of the Australian Accounting Standards Board. The financial report 
includes the consolidated financial statements of the Consolidated Entity. The financial report has been prepared on the basis 
of historical cost, except for derivative financial instruments that have been measured at fair value. The financial report i s 
presented in Australian dollars, unless otherwise noted. 

The accounting policies used have been consistently applied for the purposes of this financial report.  

The Company is a company of the kind referred to in ASIC Class Order 98/100, and in accordance with that Class Or der 
amounts in the financial report are rounded to the nearest thousand dollars, unless otherwise noted.  

2.2 Statement of compliance 

The financial report also complies with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as issued by the International 
Accounting Standards Board. 

2.3 New accounting standards and interpretations 

The Consolidated Entity has applied the following standards and amendments for the first time for the annual reporting period 
commencing 1 July 2013:  

 

 AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement and AASB 2011-8 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from 
AASB 13 

 AASB 119 Employee Benefits (September 2011) and AASB 2011-10 Amendments to Australian Accounting 
Standards arising from AASB 119 (September 2011)  

 AASB 127 Separate Financial Statements (2011) 

 AASB 128 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures (2011) 

 AASB 2011-4 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards to Remove Individual Key Management Personnel 
Disclosure Requirements 

 AASB 2012-2 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Disclosures – Offsetting Financial Assets and 
Financial Liabilities 

 AASB 2012-5 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from Annual Improvements 2009 – 2011 
Cycle 

 AASB 2012-9 Amendments to AASB 1048 from the Withdrawal of Australian Interpretation 1039 

 AASB 2012-6 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Mandatory Effective Date of AASB 9 and 
Transition Disclosures 

 AASB 2013-3 Amendments to AASB 136 – Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets 

The adoption of these standards did not result in a change in the financial position or performance of the Consolidated Entit y. 
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2.  Significant accounting policies (cont.) 

 
Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations that have recently been issued or amended but are not yet effective and 
have not been adopted by the Consolidated Entity for the annual reporting period ended 30 June 2014 are outlined in the 
table below.  These standards and amendments are not expected to have a material impact on the Consolidated Entity‘s 
financial position or performance; however, increased disclosure may be required.  

 

 

Reference 

 

Title 

 

Effective / Application date 
of Standard for Group 

AASB 2012-3 ► Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Offsetting Financial Assets and 
Financial Liabilities 

► 1 July 2014 

► AASB 2013-4  

 

► Amendments to Australia Accounting Standards – Novation of Derivatives and 
Continuation of Hedge Accounting 

 

► 1 July 2014 

AASB 2013-9 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Conceptual Framework, 
Materiality and Financial Instruments (December 2013) – Part B – Materiality 

1 July 2014 

AASB 2014-1 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards Part A: Annual Improvements 
2010-2012 and 2011-2013 Cycles 

1 July 2014 

AASB 2014-1 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards Part C: Materiality  1 July 2014 

Interpretation 21 Levies 1 July 2014 

AASB 9 Financial Instruments 1 July 2018 

AASB 2009-11 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB 9  

► AASB 2010-7 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB 9  ► 1 July 2018 

AASB 2013-9  

 

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Conceptual Framework, 
Materiality and Financial Instruments (December 2013) – Part C – Financial 
Instruments 

1 July 2018 

AASB 2014-1 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Part E: Financial Instruments 1 July 2018 
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2.  Significant accounting policies 
(cont.) 

The following significant accounting policies have been 
adopted in the preparation and presentation of the financial 
report: 

(A) BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION 

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the 
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries. 
Subsidiaries are all those entities over which the 
Consolidated Entity has power over the investee such that 
the Consolidated Entity is able to direct the relevant 
activities, has exposure or rights to variable returns from its 
involvement with the investee and has the ability to use its 
power over the investee to affect the amount of the 
investor‘s returns. The results of subsidiaries acquired or 
disposed during the year are included in the consolidated 
statement of comprehensive income from the effective date 
of acquisition and up to the effective date of disposal, as 
appropriate. Where necessary, adjustments are made to 
the financial statements of the subsidiaries to bring their 
accounting policies into line with those used by other 
members of the Consolidated Entity. All intra-group 
transactions, balances, income and expenses are 
eliminated in full on consolidation. 

When the Consolidated Entity loses control of a subsidiary, 
the profit or loss on disposal is calculated as the difference 
between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the 
consideration received and the fair value of any retained 
interest and (ii) the previous carrying amount of the assets 
(including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary and any 
non-controlling interests. Amounts previously recognised in 
other comprehensive income in relation to the subsidiaries 
are accounted for (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or 
transferred directly to retained earnings) in the same 
manner as would be required if the relevant assets or 
liabilities were disposed of. The fair value of any investment 
retained in the former subsidiary at the date when control is 
lost is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition for 
subsequent accounting under AASB 139 Financial 
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement or, when 
applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an investment in 
an associate or jointly controlled entity. 

(B) BUSINESS COMBINATIONS 

Acquisitions of subsidiaries and businesses are accounted 
for using the acquisition method. The consideration for each 
acquisition is measured at the aggregate of the fair values 
(at the date of exchange) of assets given, liabilities incurred 
or assumed, and equity instruments issued by the 
Consolidated Entity in exchange for control of the acquiree. 
Acquisition related costs are recognised in profit or loss as 
incurred. 

Where applicable, the consideration for the acquisition 
includes any asset or liability resulting from a contingent 
consideration agreement, measured at its acquisition-date 
fair value. Subsequent changes in such fair values are 
adjusted against the cost of acquisition where they qualify 
as measurement period adjustments. All other subsequent 

changes in the fair value of contingent consideration are 
recorded in the consolidated statement of comprehensive 
income. 

Where a business combination is achieved in stages, the 
Consolidated Entity‘s previously held interests in the 
acquired entity are remeasured at fair value at the 
acquisition date (i.e. the date the Consolidated Entity 
attains control) and the resulting gain or loss, if any, is 
recognised in profit or loss. Amounts arising from interests 
in the acquiree prior to the acquisition date that have 
previously been recognised in other comprehensive income 
are reclassified to profit or loss, where such treatment 
would be appropriate if that interest was disposed of. 

The aquiree‘s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent 
liabilities that meet the conditions for recognition under 
AASB 3 are recognised at their fair value at the acquisition 
date. 

If the initial accounting for a business combination is 
incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the 
combination occurs, the Consolidated Entity reports 
provisional amounts for the items for which the accounting is 
incomplete. Those provisional amounts are adjusted during 
the measurement period (see below), or additional assets or 
liabilities are recognised, to reflect new information obtained 
about the facts and circumstances that existed as of the 
acquisition date that, if known, would have affected the 
amounts recognised as of that date. The measurement 
period is the period from the date of acquisition to the date 
the Consolidated Entity obtains complete information about 
facts and circumstances that existed as of acquisition date – 
and is subject to a maximum of one year. 

(C) JOINT ARRANGEMENTS  

Joint arrangements are classified as either a joint venture or 
a joint operation, based on the rights and obligations arising 
from the contractual obligations between the parties to the 
arrangement. 

Joint venture: When the Consolidated Entity has rights to the 
net assets of the arrangement, the investment is accounted 
for using the equity method. 

Joint operation: When the Consolidated Entity has rights to 
the individual assets and obligations arising from the joint 
arrangements, the Consolidated Entity recognises its share 
of the assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses of the 
operation. 

(D) BORROWING COSTS 

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, 
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are 
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to 
get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the 
cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are 
substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Investment 
income earned on the temporary investment of specific 
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is 
deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation. 
All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in 
the period in which they are incurred. 
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2.  Significant accounting policies 
(cont.) 

(E) CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits. 
Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments 
that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash 
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in 
value. Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in 
current liabilities in the balance sheet. 

(F) ACQUISITION OF ASSETS 

Assets acquired are recorded at the cost of acquisition, 
being the purchase consideration determined as at the date 
of acquisition. In the event that settlement of all or part of 
the cash consideration given in the acquisition of an asset is 
deferred the fair value of the purchase consideration is 
determined by discounting the amounts payable in the 
future to their present value at the date of acquisition. 

(G) REVENUE RECOGNITION 

Rendering of services 

Revenue from a contract to provide services is recognised 
by reference to the stage of completion of the contract. 
Revenue from time and material contracts is recognised at 
the contractual rate as labour hours are delivered and direct 
expenses are incurred. Where the outcome of a contract 
can be estimated reliably, revenue and costs are recognised 
by reference to the stage of completion of the contract 
activity at the end of the reporting period, measured based 
on the proportion of contract costs incurred for work 
performed to date relative to the estimated total contract 
costs, except where this would not be representative of the 
stage of completion. Variations in contract work, claims, 
contract exit costs and incentive payments are included to 
the extent that the amount can be measured reliably and its 
receipt is considered probable. 

Sale of goods and disposal of assets 

Revenue from the sale of goods and disposal of other 
assets is recognised when the Consolidated Entity has 
transferred the significant risks and rewards of ownership 
of the goods to the buyer. 

Interest income 

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by 
reference to the principal outstanding and at the 
effective interest rate applicable. 

(H) INCOME TAX  

Current tax 

Current tax is calculated by reference to the amount of 
income taxes payable or recoverable in respect of the 
taxable profit or tax loss for the period. It is calculated 
using tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or 
substantively enacted by reporting date. Current tax for 

current and prior periods is recognised as a liability (or 
asset) to the extent that it is unpaid (or refundable).  

Deferred tax 

Deferred tax is accounted for using the balance sheet 
method in respect of temporary differences arising from 
differences between the carrying amount of assets and 
liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding 
tax base of those items. 

In principle, deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all 
taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are 
recognised to the extent that it is probable that sufficient 
taxable amounts will be available against which deductible 
temporary differences or unused tax losses and tax offsets 
can be utilised. However, deferred tax assets and liabilities 
are not recognised  if the temporary differences giving rise 
to them arise from the initial recognition of assets and 
liabilities (other than as a result of a business combination) 
which affects neither taxable income nor accounting profit. 
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised in respect of relevant 
finite life intangible assets at acquisition. 

This approach considers the future tax consequences of 
recovering the underlying asset through use and through 
ultimate disposal. The deferred tax liability is reduced as 
the assets are amortised. Furthermore, a deferred tax 
liability is not recognised in relation to taxable temporary 
differences arising from goodwill. 

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary 
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, branches, 
associates and joint ventures except where the 
Consolidated Entity is able to control the reversal of the 
temporary differences and it is probable that the temporary 
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future. 
Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary 
differences associated with these investments and interests 
are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that 
there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise 
the benefits of the temporary differences and they are 
expected to reverse in the foreseeable future. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax 
rates that are expected to apply to the period(s) when the 
asset and liability giving rise to them are realised or settled, 
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or 
substantively enacted by reporting date. The measurement 
of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax 
consequences that would follow from the manner in which 
the Consolidated Entity expects, at the reporting date, to 
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and 
liabilities. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when they relate 
to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the 
Company/Consolidated Entity intends to settle its current tax 
assets and liabilities on a net basis. 
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2.  Significant accounting policies 
(cont.) 

(H) INCOME TAX (CONT.) 

Current and deferred tax for the period 

Current and deferred tax is recognised as an expense or 
income in the consolidated statement of comprehensive 
income, except when it relates to items credited or debited 
directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is also 
recognised directly in equity, or where it arises from the 
initial accounting for a business combination, in which case it 
is taken into account in the determination of goodwill or 
excess of purchase price over net asset(s) acquired. 

(I) INVENTORIES 

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable 
value. 

Consumables are recorded at cost and written off over 
the life of the contract to which they relate. 

(J) FINANCIAL ASSETS 

Trade receivables, loans, and other receivables that have 
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an 
active market, are classified as ‗loans and receivables‘. 

Financial assets are recognised initially at fair value, plus 
transaction costs. After initial measurement, financial assets 
are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the 
effective interest rate method, less impairment. Amortised 
costs are calculated by taking into account any discount or 
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral 
part of the effective interest rate.  The effective interest rate 
is included in other income in the consolidated statement of 
comprehensive income. Financial assets are derecognised 
when the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have 
expired. 

The Consolidated Entity assesses, at each reporting date, 
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a 
group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a 
group of financial assets is deemed to be impaired if there is 
objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more 
events that has occurred since the initial recognition of the 
asset (an incurred ‗loss event‘) and that loss event has an 
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial 
asset or the group of financial assets that can be reliably 
estimated. Evidence of impairment may include indications 
that the debtors or a group of debtors is experiencing 
significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in 
interest or principal payments, the probability that they will 
enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and 
observable data indicating that there is a measurable 
decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as 
changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with 
defaults. 

 

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the 
Consolidated Entity first assesses whether objective 
evidence of impairment exists individually for financial assets 
that are individually significant, or collectively for financial 
assets that are not individually significant. If the Consolidated 
Entity determines that no objective evidence of impairment 
exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether 
significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial 
assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively 
assesses them for impairment. Assets that are individually 
assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is, 
or continues to be, recognised are not included in a collective 
assessment of impairment.  If there is objective evidence that 
an impairment loss has been incurred, the amount of the loss 
is measured as the difference between the asset‘s carrying 
amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows 
(excluding future expected credit losses that have not yet 
been incurred). The present value of the estimated future 
cash flows is discounted at the financial asset‘s original 
effective interest rate. If a loan has a variable interest rate, 
the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the 
current effective interest rate. 

 

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use 
of an allowance account and the loss is recognised in profit 
or loss. Interest income continues to be accrued on the 
reduced carrying amount and is accrued using the rate of 
interest used to discount the future cash flows for the 
purpose of measuring the impairment loss. The interest 
income is recorded in other income in the consolidated 
statement of comprehensive income. Loans together with the 
associated allowance are written off when there is no 
realistic prospect of future recovery and all collateral has 
been realised or has been transferred to the Consolidated 
Entity. If, in a subsequent year, the amount of the estimated 
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an event 
occurring after the impairment was recognised, the 
previously recognised impairment loss is increased or 
reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a write-off is 
later recovered, the recovery is credited to finance costs in 
the income statement. 

 

(K) FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 

Borrowings and other loans are recorded initially at fair 
value, net of transaction costs. 

Subsequent to initial recognition, borrowings are measured 
at amortised cost with any difference between the initial 
recognised amount and the redemption value being 
recognised in profit or loss over the period of the borrowing 
using the effective interest rate method except where 
capitalised in accordance with note 2(D). 

Bills of exchange are recorded at an amount equal to the 
net proceeds received, with the discount amortised over the 
period to maturity. Interest expense is recognised on an 
effective yield basis. 

Financial guarantee contract liabilities are measured at 
their fair values and subsequently at the higher of the 
amount recognised as a provision and the amount initially 
recognised, less accumulated amortisation. 
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2.  Significant accounting policies 
(cont.) 

(K) FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (CONT.) 

Derecognition 

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under 
the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires. When an 
existing financial liability is replaced by another from the 
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of 
an existing liability are substantially modified, such an 
exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of 
the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The 
difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in 
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income. 

 

Offsetting of financial instruments 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net 
amount is reported in the consolidated statement of financial 
position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset 
the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on 
a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities 
simultaneously. 

 

(L) FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS ISSUED BY THE 
CONSOLIDATED ENTITY 

Debt and equity instruments 

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either 
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of 
the contractual arrangement. 

Transaction costs on the issue of equity instruments 

Transaction costs arising on the issue of equity instruments 
are recognised directly in equity as a reduction of the 
proceeds of the equity instruments to which the costs 
relate. Transaction costs are the costs that are incurred 
directly in connection with the issue of those equity 
instruments and which would not have been incurred had 
those instruments not been issued. 

Interest and dividends 

Interest and dividends are classified as expenses or as 
distributions of profit consistent with the balance sheet 
classification of the related debt or equity instruments or 
component parts of compound instruments. 

(M) DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

The Consolidated Entity enters into derivative financial 
instruments to manage its exposure to interest rate and 
foreign exchange rate risk. Further details of derivative 
financial instruments are disclosed in note 28 to the 
financial statements. 

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date a 
derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently 
remeasured to their fair value at each reporting date. The 
resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss 
immediately unless the derivative is designated and 
effective as a hedge instrument, in which event, the timing 
of the recognition in profit or loss depends on the nature of 
the hedge relationship. The Consolidated Entity designates 
derivatives as hedges of highly probable forecast 
transactions (cash flow hedges).  

Hedge accounting 

The Consolidated Entity designates certain derivative 
instruments as cash flow hedges. At the inception of the 
hedge relationship the entity documents the relationship 
between the hedging instrument and hedged item, along 
with its risk management objectives and its strategy for 
undertaking various hedge transactions. Furthermore, at the 
inception of the hedge and on an ongoing basis, the 
Consolidated Entity documents whether the hedging 
instrument that is used in the hedging relationship is highly 
effective in offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows of 
the hedged item.  Movements in the hedging reserve in 
equity are also disclosed in the consolidated statement of 
changes in equity. 

Cash flow hedge 

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of 
derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash flow 
hedges are deferred in equity. The gain or loss relating to the 
ineffective portion is recognised immediately in profit or loss 
as part of other expenses or other income. Amounts deferred 
in equity are recycled in profit or loss in the periods when the 
hedged item is recognised in profit or loss. However, when 
the forecast transaction that is hedged results in the 
recognition of a non-financial asset or a non-financial liability, 
the gains and losses previously deferred in equity are 
transferred from equity and included in the initial 
measurement of the cost of the asset or liability. Hedge 
accounting is discontinued when the Consolidated Entity 
revokes the hedging relationship, the hedging instrument is 
sold, terminated or exercised, or no longer qualifies for 
hedge accounting. Any cumulative gain or loss deferred in 
equity at that time remains in equity and is recognised when 
the forecast transaction is ultimately recognised in profit or 
loss. When a forecast transaction is no longer expected to 
occur, the cumulative gain or loss that was deferred in equity 
is recognised immediately in profit or loss. 
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2.  Significant accounting policies 
(cont.) 

(N) PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 

Property, plant and equipment are stated at their 
cost of acquisition less accumulated depreciation 
and any impairment write down. 

Depreciation is provided on property, plant and equipment. 
Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis so as to 
write-off the net cost of each asset over its expected useful 
life to its estimated residual value. Leasehold improvements 
are depreciated over the period of the lease or estimated 
useful life whichever is shorter, using the straight-line 
method. 

The following estimated useful lives are used in the 
calculation of depreciation: 

Leasehold improvements 1 – 10 years  

Plant and equipment  4 – 5 years  

Assets under finance lease  2 – 8 years  

Marine vessels 20 – 25 years 

The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation 
methods are reviewed at the end of each annual reporting 
period, with the effect of any changes recognised on a 
prospective basis. 

(O) LEASED ASSETS 

Leased assets classified as finance leases are recognised 
as assets. The amount initially brought to account is the 
fair value of the assets, or if lower, the present value of 
minimum lease payments, each determined at the 
inception of the lease. 

A finance lease is one that effectively transfers from the 
lessor to the lessee substantially all the risks and rewards 
incidental to ownership of the leased asset. All other 
leases are classified as operating leases. Finance leased 
assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over the 
estimated useful life of the asset. Finance lease payments 
are allocated between interest expense and reduction of 
lease liability over the term of the lease. The interest 
expense is determined by applying the interest rate implicit 
in the lease to the outstanding lease liability at the 
beginning of each lease payment period. 

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on 
a straight-line basis over the lease term, except where 
another systematic basis is more representative of the time 
pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset are 
consumed. 

Lease incentives 

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter 
into operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a 
liability. The aggregate benefits of incentives are 
recognised as a reduction of rental expense on a straight-
line basis. 

(P) GOODWILL 

Goodwill arising in a business combination is recognised as 
an asset at the date that control is acquired (the acquisition 
date). Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the 
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling 
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer‘s 
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over 
the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable 
assets acquired and the liabilities assumed. 

If, after reassessment, the Group‘s interest in the fair value 
of the acquiree‘s identifiable net assets exceeds the sum of 
the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the 
acquirer‘s previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if 
any), the excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss 
as a bargain purchase gain. 

Goodwill is not amortised but is reviewed for impairment at 
least annually. For the purpose of impairment testing, 
goodwill is allocated to each of the Group‘s cash-generating 
units expected to benefit from the synergies of the 
combination. Cash-generating units to which goodwill has 
been allocated are tested for impairment annually, or more 
frequently when there is an indication that the unit may be 
impaired. If the recoverable amount of the cash-generating 
unit is less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is 
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill 
allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the unit 
pro-rata on the basis of the carrying amount of each asset 
in the unit. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is 
not reversed in a subsequent period. 

On disposal of a subsidiary, the attributable amount of 
goodwill is included in the determination of the profit or loss 
on disposal. 

(Q) OTHER INTANGIBLES 

All potential intangible assets acquired in a business 
combination are identified and recognised separately from 
goodwill where they satisfy the definition of an intangible 
asset and their fair value can be measured reliably. 

Intangible assets are tested for impairment where an 
indicator of impairment exists, and in the case of indefinite 
life intangibles, annually, either individually or at the cash-
generating unit level. Useful lives are also examined on an 
annual basis and adjustments, where applicable, are made 
on a prospective basis. 

Trademarks and brand names 

Trademarks and brand names have been acquired and are 
recorded at cost less any impairment write down. The 
Company is committed to continue to actively use and 
promote the SKILLED trademark and brand name in its 
business. The directors believe the SKILLED trademark 
and brand name has an indefinite life and no amortisation 
is therefore required. 
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2.  Significant accounting policies 
(cont.) 

(Q) OTHER INTANGIBLES (CONT.) 

Other brand names are amortised on a straight-line basis 
over their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful lives 
are reviewed at the end of each annual reporting period, 
with any changes being recognised as a change in the 
accounting estimate. Other trademarks and brand names 
are recorded at cost less accumulated amortisation, and 
are amortised over periods ranging from one to five years.  

Customer contracts 

Customer contract intangible assets acquired are recorded at 
cost less accumulated amortisation and any impairment write 
down. The estimated useful lives are reviewed at the end of 
each annual reporting period, with any changes being 
recognised as a change in the accounting estimate.  
Customer contracts are amortised over a period of between 1 
and 5 years on a straight-line basis.  

Software and licences 

Costs associated with the development of computer systems 
are acquired, capitalised and then expensed over the future 
periods to which the economic benefits of the expenditure 
are expected to be recoverable. Computer software is 
recorded at cost less accumulated amortisation, and 
amortised over periods ranging from three to twelve years 
on a straight-line basis. 

Other acquired intangibles - Non-compete agreements, 
contracts and bareboat charters 

Non-compete agreements, contracts and bareboat charters 
arising as a result of a business acquisition, recognised 
separately from goodwill, are valued at the time of the 
acquisition and amortised over the life of the 
agreement/contract/charter on a straight-line basis. 

(R) IMPAIRMENT OF NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS 

At each reporting date, the Consolidated Entity reviews the 
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to 
determine whether there is any indication that those assets 
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication 
exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in 
order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if 
any). Where the asset does not generate cash flows that 
are independent from other assets, the Consolidated Entity 
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating 
unit to which the asset belongs. 

Goodwill, intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and 
intangible assets not yet available for use are tested for 
impairment annually and whenever there is an indication 
that the asset may be impaired. 

The recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less 
costs to sell and value-in-use. In assessing value-in-use, 
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their 
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects 

current market assessments of the time value of money 
and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates 
of future cash flows have not been adjusted. 

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating 
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the 
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is 
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is 
recognised in profit or loss immediately. 

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the 
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is 
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable 
amount, but only to the extent that the increased carrying 
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would 
have been determined had no impairment loss been 
recognised for the asset (or cash- generating unit) in prior 
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised in 
profit or loss immediately. 

(S) EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 

Provision is made for benefits accruing to employees in 
respect of wages and salaries, rostered days off, annual 
leave, long-service leave, contracted severances and 
incentives when it is probable that settlement will be 
required and they are capable of being measured reliably. 

Provisions made with respect to employee benefits 
expected to be settled within 12 months, are measured at 
their nominal values using the remuneration rate expected 
to apply at the time of settlement. Provisions made with 
respect to employee benefits that are not expected to be 
settled within 12 months are measured at the present value 
of the estimated future cash outflows to be made by the 
Consolidated Entity with respect to services provided by 
employees up to the reporting date. 

(T) FOREIGN CURRENCY 

The individual financial statements of each entity are 
presented in its functional currency being the currency of the 
primary economic environment in which the entity operates. 
For the purpose of the consolidated financial statements, the 
results and financial position of each entity are expressed in 
Australian dollars, which is the functional currency of 
SKILLED Group Limited and the presentation currency of the 
financial statements. 

In preparing the financial statements of the individual 
entities, transactions in currencies other than the entity‘s 
functional currency are recorded at the rate of exchange 
prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At each 
balance sheet date, monetary items denominated in 
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at 
that time. 

Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are 
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the 
rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was 
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms 
of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated. 
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2.  Significant accounting policies 
(cont.) 

 
(T) FOREIGN CURRENCY (CONT.) 

Exchange differences are recognised in profit or loss in 
the period in which they arise, except for: 

• exchange differences on transactions entered into in 
order to hedge certain foreign currency risks (refer 
note 2(M); 

• exchange differences on monetary items receivable or 
payable to a foreign operation for which settlement is 
neither planned nor likely to occur, which form part of 
the net investment in a foreign operation, and which are 
recognised in the foreign currency translation reserve 
and recognized in profit or loss on disposal of the net 
investment. 

On consolidation, the assets and liabilities of foreign 
controlled entities are translated into Australian dollars at 
exchange rates prevailing on the balance sheet date. Income 
and expense items are translated at the average exchange 
rate for the period unless exchange rates fluctuate 
significantly. Exchange differences are taken directly to the 
foreign currency translation reserve and recognised in the 
income statement on disposal of the foreign operation. 

(U) GOODS AND SERVICES TAX 

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of 
the amount of goods and services tax (GST), except: 

(i)  where the amount of GST incurred is not recoverable 
from the taxation authority, it is recognised as part of the 
cost of acquisition of an asset or as part of an item of 
expense; or 

(ii) for receivables and payables which are recognised 
inclusive of GST. 

The amount of GST recoverable from the taxation authority is 
included as part of receivables and the amount of GST 
payable to the taxation authority is included as part of 
payables. 

Cash flows are included in the cash flow statement on a 
gross basis. The GST component of cash flows arising from 
investing and financing activities which is recoverable from, 
or payable to, the taxation authority is classified as operating 
cash flows. 

(V) PROVISIONS 

Provisions are recognised when the Consolidated 
Entity has a present obligation, the future sacrifice of 
economic benefits is probable and the amount of the 
provision can be measured reliably. When some or all 
of the economic benefits required to settle a provision 
are expected to be recovered from a third party, the 
receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually 
certain that recovery will be received and the amount 
of the receivable can be measured reliably. 

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate 
of the consideration required to settle the present 
obligation at reporting date, taking into account the risks 
and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Where a 
provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to 
settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the 
present value of those cash flows. 

Restoration provision 

Present obligations arising from restoration are recognised 
and measured as a provision. A restoration provision is 
considered to exist where the Consolidated Entity has 
entered into a contract where future costs are expected to 
meet the obligations under the contract.  Such contracts 
include property leaseholds and vessel charters. 

(W) WORKERS COMPENSATION – SELF INSURANCE  

Outstanding claims 

A liability for outstanding claims for self-insurance in relation 
to workers compensation is provided for in respect of claims 
incurred but not yet paid, claims incurred but not yet 
reported and the anticipated direct and indirect costs 
associated with those claims. The liability for outstanding 
claims has been measured on the basis of an independently 
prepared actuarial assessment of the cost of claims, 
including the anticipated effects of inflation, discounted to a 
present value at balance date. 

The nature of the provision estimated and the data upon 
which the provision is based are such that it is likely the 
outcome will be different from the current estimate. 

Claims recoveries 

Claims recoveries are recorded on claims paid under self -
insurance in relation to workers compensation. The 
recoveries are recognised in profit or loss and are based 
on actuarial assessment of the expected recovery, which 
includes claims paid and claims reported but not yet paid 
to the extent that the nature of the costs incurred are 
recoverable, in a manner similar to the measurement of 
the outstanding claim liability and discounted to a present 
value at balance date. 

(X) SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS 

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised, 
together with a corresponding increase in other capital 
reserves in equity, over the period in which the performance 
and/or service conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative 
expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at each 
reporting date until the vesting date reflects the extent to 
which the vesting period has expired and the Group‘s best 
estimate of the number of equity instruments that will 
ultimately vest. The income statement expense or credit for a 
period represents the movement in cumulative expense 
recognised as at the beginning and end of that period and is 
recognised in employee benefits expense.  No expense is 
recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest, except for 
equity-settled transactions for which vesting is conditional 
upon a market or non-vesting condition. 
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2.  Significant accounting policies 
(cont.) 

(X) SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (CONT.) 

These are treated as vesting irrespective of whether or not 
the market or non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided that 
all other performance and/or service conditions are satisfied. 

 

When the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, the 
minimum expense recognised is the expense had the terms 
had not been modified, if the original terms of the award are 
met. An additional expense is recognised for any 
modification that increases the total fair value of the share-
based payment transaction, or is otherwise beneficial to the 
employee as measured at the date of modification. 

 

When an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it 
vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet 
recognised for the award is recognised immediately. This 
includes any award where nonvesting conditions within the 
control of either the entity or the employee are not met. 
However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled 
award, and designated as a replacement award on the date 
that it is granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated 
as if they were a modification of the original award, as 
described in the previous paragraph. 

 

The dilutive effect of outstanding options and performance 
rights is reflected as additional share dilution in the 
computation of diluted earnings per share (further details are 
given in note 29). 

 

(Y) FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT 

The Consolidated Entity measures financial instruments, 
such as derivatives, at fair value at each balance sheet date. 
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset 
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between 
market participants at the measurement date. The fair value 
measurement is based on the presumption that the 
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes 
place either: 

 

• In the principal market for the asset or liability, or 

• In the absence of a principal market, in the most 
advantageous market for the asset or liability 

The principal or the most advantageous market must be 
accessible to by the Consolidated Entity. 

 

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the 
assumptions that market participants would use when pricing 
the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in 
their economic best interest. 

 

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into 
account a market participant's ability to generate economic 
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by 
selling it to another market participant that would use the 
asset in its highest and best use. 

The Consolidated Entity uses valuation techniques that are 
appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data 
is available to measure fair value, maximising the use of 
relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of 
unobservable inputs. 

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or 
disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within 
the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the 
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 
measurement as a whole: 

• Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active 
markets for identical assets or liabilities 

• Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest 
level input that is significant to the fair value 
measurement is directly or indirectly observable 

• Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest 
level input that is significant to the fair value 
measurement is unobservable 

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial 
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines 
whether transfers have occurred between Levels in the 
hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the 
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting 
period. 

 
(Z) CURRENT VERSUS NON-CURRENT CLASSIFICATION 

The group presents assets and liabilities in the statement of 
financial position based on current/non-current classification.  
An asset is current when it is: 

• Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or 
consumed in the Consolidated Entity‘s normal 
operating cycle 

• Held primarily for the purpose of trading 

• Expected to be realised within twelve months after the 
reporting period 

• Cash or cash equivalents unless restricted from being 
exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least 
twelve months after the reporting period 

All other assets are classified as non-current. 

A liability is current when: 

• It is expected to be settled in the Consolidated Entity‘s 
normal operating cycle 

• It is held primarily for the purpose of trading 

• It is due to be settled within twelve months after the 
reporting period 

• There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement 
of the liability for at least twelve months after the 
reporting period 

The group classifies all other liabilities as non-current. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-
current assets and liabilities.
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3.  Critical accounting judgments 
and key sources of uncertainty 

 
(A) JUDGMENTS AND ESTIMATES 

In the application of the Consolidated Entity‘s accounting 
policies, management is required to make judgments, 
estimates and assumptions about carrying values of assets 
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other 
sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are 
based on historical experience and various other factors 
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstance, 
the results of which form the basis of making the judgments. 
Actual results may differ from these estimates. The 
estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an 
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are 
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if 
the revision affects only that period or in the period of the 
revision and future periods if the revision affects both 
current and future periods. 

Judgments made by management in the application of the 
Consolidated Entity‘s accounting policies that have 
significant effects on the financial statements and 
estimates with a significant risk of material adjustments in 
the next year are disclosed, where applicable, in the 
relevant notes to the financial statements. 

Accounting policies are selected and applied in a manner 
that ensures the resulting financial information satisfies 
the concepts of relevance and reliability, thereby ensuring 
that the substance of the underlying transactions or other 
events is reported. 

(B) KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY  

Below are the key assumptions concerning the future, 
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at 
balance sheet date, that have significant risk of causing 
material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets 
and liabilities within the next financial year: 

Employee Benefits 

The provision recognised for long service leave includes 
estimates of employees length of tenure, the timing of 
future leave payments and the anticipated effects of salary 
and wage increases, which are discounted to a present 
value at balance date.  The carrying amount of the 
provision for long service leave at the balance date was 
$17,485,721 (2013: $14,802,000). 

Goodwill and intangibles impairment 

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an 
estimation of the value-in-use of the cash-generating units 
to which goodwill has been allocated. The value-in-use 
calculation requires the Consolidated Entity to estimate the 
future cash flows expected to arise from the cash-
generating unit and a suitable discount rate in order to 
calculate present value. The carrying amount of goodwill at 
the balance sheet date was $411,118,000 (2013: 
$340,550,000). Further details of the impairment testing are 
provided in note 11. 

Restoration costs 

A provision has been made for the present value of 
anticipated costs of the future restoration of leased 
property and marine vessels.  These calculations include 
estimates of the future cost estimates associated with 
replacing office fit outs, dry docking and hand back 
costs.  This uncertainty may result in the future actual 
expenditure differing from the amounts currently 
provided.  The provisions recognised are assessed 
based on the condition and actual costs incurred for 
similar works carried out in the past.  Changes to the 
estimated future costs are recognised in the statement 
of financial position by adjusting both the asset and 
provision.  The carrying amount of the provision for 
restoration costs at balance date was $9,296,000 (2013: 
$3,863,000). 

Workers compensation self-insurance 

A provision has been made for the anticipated costs to settle 
workplace injury claims in regions where the Consolidated 
Entity self-insures.  The provision for workers compensation is 
based on a third party actuarial valuation, except for 
components of seafarers insurance, which is based on 
historical results in settling claims and open cases at balance 
date.  The carrying amount of the provision for workers 
compensation self-insurance at balance date was $6,104,000 
(2013: $8,407,000). 
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4. Profit  

The profit before income tax, includes the following items of revenue and expense:  

2014 2013 

$‘000 $‘000 

(A) REVENUE   
Sales revenue:   

Rendering of services 1,869,569 1,868,192 

(B) EQUITY-ACCOUNTED INCOME FROM ASSOCIATES   
Income from OMS Alliance joint venture 4,028 5,701 
Loss from GSS joint venture (279) – 
Total 3,749 5,701 

(C) OTHER  INCOME   
Interest income 212 325 

(D) EXPENSES   
Depreciation and amortisation:   

Depreciation:   
Plant and equipment 3,961 2,816 
Leasehold improvements 1,459 1,208 
Assets under finance lease 70 325 

 Marine Vessels 2,238       – 

 7,728 4,349 
Amortisation:   

Software and licences 4,695 5,951 
Trademarks and brand names 137 55 
Other acquired intangibles 4,420 24 

 9,252 6,030 
Total depreciation and amortisation expense 16,980 10,379 
Finance costs:   

Interest and other costs paid to other entities 8,226 3,973 
Finance lease charges 83 126 
Notional interest on deferred acquisition payments 1,337 – 

 9,646 4,099 
Net bad and doubtful debts expense 462 647 
Operating lease rental expenses:   

Properties 11,950 10,190 
Computer equipment 2,104 1,958 
Marine vessels under bareboat charter 14,382 5,576 

 28,436 17,724 

 

5. Sale of assets 

2014 2013 

$‘000 $‘000 

Sale of assets in the ordinary course of business have given rise to the following:   
Net profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment 195 103 
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6. Income tax 

The prima facie income tax expense on pre-tax accounting profit reconciles to the income tax expense in the financial 
statements as follows: 

2014 2013 

$‘000 $‘000 

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the accounting profit as follows: 

Profit from operations 60,567 77,181 

Income tax expense calculated at 30% 18,170 23,154 
Non-deductible items  504 358 

Foreign income tax rate differential (1,141) (1,072) 

Research and development concession – (74) 

Equity-accounted income from joint venture (1,125) (1,710) 

Other 89 54 

Under/(over) provision of income tax in previous year (130) 312 

Income tax expense 16,367 21,022 

Income tax expense comprises:   
Current  tax expense 18,218 14,257 

Adjustments recognised in the current year in relation to the current tax of prior 
years 861 55 

Deferred tax expense relating to the origination and reversal of temporary 
differences 

(2,712) 6,710 

Total tax expense 16,367 21,022 

Tax-consolidation system 

The company and all its wholly owned Australian resident entities are part of a tax-consolidated group under Australian 
taxation law. SKILLED Group Limited is the head entity in the tax-consolidated group. 

Nature of tax-funding arrangements and tax-sharing agreements 

Entities within the tax-consolidated group have entered into a tax-funding arrangement and a tax-sharing agreement with the 
head entity. Under the terms of the tax-funding arrangement, SKILLED Group Limited and each of the entities in the tax-
consolidated group has agreed to pay a tax equivalent payment to, or from, the head entity, based on the current tax l iability 
or current tax asset of the entity. Such amounts are reflected in amounts receivable from, or payable to, other entities in t he 
tax-consolidated group. 

The tax-sharing agreement entered into between members of the tax-consolidated group provides for the determination of 
the allocation of income tax liabilities between the entities should the head entity default on its tax payment obligations. No 
amounts have been recognised in the financial statements in respect of this agreement, as payment of any  amounts under 
the tax-sharing agreement is considered remote. 
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7. Dividends 

2014 2014 2013 2013 

Cents   Total   Cents  Total 

per share $‘000  per share $‘000 

(A) RECOGNISED AMOUNTS     
Final fully franked dividend  9.0 21,018 8.0 18,679 

Interim fully franked dividend  7.5 17,644 7.0 16,367 

 16.5 38,662 15.0 35,046 

(B) UNRECOGNISED AMOUNTS     
Final 2014 dividend fully franked at a tax rate of 30% ► 9.5 ► 22,349 – – 

Final 2013 dividend fully franked at a tax rate of 30% ► – ► – 9.0 21,018 

 
► 9.5 ► 22,349 9.0 21,018 

 

2014 2013 

$‘000 $‘000 

Franking account balance 80,221 74,650 

 
The impact on the franking account of a dividend not yet recognised as a liability at year end will be a reduction in the 
franking account of $9,578,000 (2013: $9,008,000). 

8. Receivables 

2014 2013 

$‘000 $‘000 

Current   

Trade receivables
(i) 249,312 207,612 

Allowance for doubtful debts    (837)    (332) 

 248,475 207,280 

Goods and services tax receivable 3,973 1,855 
Other receivables

(ii) 2,459 1,714 

 254,907 210,849 

Non- Current   

Claims recoveries 2,578 1,530 

Other receivables 49 158 

 2,627 1,688 

 

(i) Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are on a variety of trading terms that average approximately 32 days from the date 

of billing.   

(ii) Other receivables do not contain any individually significant balances and there are no significant concentrations of credit risk. At 30 

June 2014 no amounts are considered past due or impaired (2013: $nil). 

Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts: 

2014 2013 

$‘000 $‘000 

Balance at the beginning of the year (332) (6,074) 

Acquisition of subsidiaries (207) – 

Amounts written off during the year 49 6,305 

Increase in allowance recognised in profit or loss (347) (563) 

Balance at end of the year (837) (332) 
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8. Receivables (cont.) 

Ageing of trade receivables: 

2014 2014 2013 2013 

$‘000  $‘000  $‘000  $‘000 

Gross  Allowance  Gross Allowance 

Not past due 217,778 – 182,566 – 

Past due 1 – 30 days 12,985 – 14,562 – 

Past due 31 – 60 days 14,604 – 5,623 – 

Past due 61 – 90 days 3,132 (24) 3,066 (10) 

Past due 91 days 813 (813) 1,795 (322) 

Total 249,312 (837) 207,612 (332) 

In determining the recoverability of a trade receivable, the Consolidated Entity considers any change in the credit quality 
of the trade receivable from the date credit was initially granted up to the reporting date. The concentration of credit risk is 
limited due to the large and unrelated customer base. Accordingly, the directors believe that there is no further credit 
provision required in excess of the allowance for doubtful debts. All of the trade receivables included in the allowance for 
doubtful debts have been individually reviewed for impairment. These trade receivables are considered impaired as the 
balances are either subject to liquidation, administration, legal or other dispute. The impairment recognised represents the 
difference between the carrying amount of these trade receivables and the present value of the expected recoveries. The 
Consolidated Entity does not hold any collateral over these balances. 

9. Other assets 

2014 2013 

  ‘000 $‘000 

Prepayments and other assets 6,264 5,510 
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10. Property, plant and equipment 

 
Land & 

buildings 

$‘000 

Leasehold 
improvements 

$‘000 

Plant & 
equipment 

$‘000 

 

Marine 
Vessels 

          $‘000 

Assets under 
finance lease 

$‘000 
Total 

$‘000 

Gross carrying amount       
Balance as at 30 June 2013 4 14,976 28,288 – 1,847 45,115 

Acquisition of subsidiaries – 275 3,426 25,391 69 29,161 

Additions – 4,260 5,007 40,906 – 50,173 

Disposals (4) (114) (1,086) (1,257) – (2,461) 

Other(i) – 21 820 – (810) 31 

Balance as at 30 June 2014 – 19,418 36,455 65,040 1,106 122,019 

Accumulated depreciation  and impairment       
Balance as at 30 June 2013 (4) (8,047) (18,604) – (375) (27,030) 

Disposals 4 111 858 397 373 1,743 

Depreciation expense
(ii) – (1,459) (3,961) (2,238) (70) (7,728) 

Other
(i) – (510) – 1 (364) (873) 

Balance as at 30 June 2014 – (9,905) (21,707) (1,840) (436) (33,888) 

Net book value       
As at 30 June 2013 – 6,929 9,989 52 1,167 18,085 

As at 30 June 2014 – 9,513 14,748 63,200 670 88,131 

Gross carrying amount       
Balance as at 30 June 2012 4 13,044 29,677 – 1,857 44,582 

Additions – 2,951 6,006 – – 8,957 
Disposals – (3,210) (8,497) – (10) (11,717) 

Other
(i)

 – 2,191 1,102 – – 3,293 

Balance as at 30 June 2013 4 14,976 28,288 – 1,847 45,115 

Accumulated depreciation  and impairment       
Balance as at 30 June 2012 (4) (9,877) (23,206) – (360) (33,447) 

Disposals – 3,097 7,766 – 4 10,867 

Depreciation expense
(ii) – (1,208) (2,816) – (325) (4,349) 

Other
(i)

 – (59) (43) – 1 (101) 

Balance as at 30 June 2013 (4) (8,047) (18,299) – (680) (27,030) 

Net book value       
As at 30 June 2012 – 3,167 6,471 – 1,497 11,135 

As at 30 June 2013 – 6,929 9,989 – 1,167 18,085 

(i) Other represents restoration assets recognised, the impact of foreign exchange translation and transfers between asset classe s. 

(ii) Depreciation expense (2014: $7,728,000, 2013: $4,349,000) is included in the line item ‗Depreciation and amortisation expense‘ in the 
Statement of Comprehensive Income (refer also note 4).  
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11. Intangibles 

 

Goodwill 

$’000 

Databases 

$’000 

Software and 
licences 

$’000 

Trademarks 
and brand 

names 

$’000 

Other 
acquired 

intangibles(iii) 

$’000 

Total 

$’000 

Gross carrying amount       
Balance as at 30 June 2013 351,277 17,850 80,042 23,874 – 473,043 

Acquisition of subsidiaries 67,985 – – 600 19,160 87,745 

Additions – – 4,480 – – 4,480 

Disposals – – (23) – – (23) 

Other
(i) 2,583 – 124 – – 2,707 

Balance as at 30 June 2014 421,845 17,850 84,623 24,474 19,160 567,952 

Accumulated amortisation       
Balance as at 30 June 2013 (10,727) (17,850) (48,250) (9,881) – (86,708) 

Disposals – – – – – – 

Amortisation expense
(ii) – – (4,695) (137) (4,420) (9,252) 

Other
(i) – – 15 – – 15 

Balance as at 30 June 2014 (10,727) (17,850) (52,930) (10,018) (4,420) (95,945) 

Net book value       
As at 30 June 2013 340,550 – 31,792 13,993 – 386,335 

As at 30 June 2014 411,118 – 31,693 14,456 14,740 472,007 

Gross carrying amount       
Balance as at 30 June 2012 346,359 17,850 82,424 23,892 9,237 479,762 

Additions – – 1,235 – – 1,235 

Disposals – – (526) – (9,237) (9,763) 

Other
(i) 4,918 – (3,091) (18) – 1,809 

Balance as at 30 June 2013 351,277 17,850 80,042 23,874 – 473,043 

Accumulated amortisation       
Balance as at 30 June 2012 (10,727) (17,850) (42,822) (9,826) (9,213) (90,438) 

Disposals – – 526 – 9,237 9,763 
Amortisation expense

(ii) – – (5,951) (55)   (24) (6,030) 

Other
(i) – – (3) – – (3) 

Balance as at 30 June 2013 (10,727) (17,850) (48,250) (9,881) – (86,708) 

Net book value       
As at 30 June 2012 335,632 – 39,602 14,066 24 389,324 

As at 30 June 2013 340,550 – 31,792 13,993 – 386,335 

(i) Other represents the impact of foreign exchange translation and transfers between asset classes. 

(ii) Amortisation expense (2014: $9,252,000, 2013: $6,030,000) is included in the line item ‗depreciation and amortisation expense‘ in the 
Statement of Comprehensive Income (refer also note 4).  

(iii) Other acquired intangibles include customer contracts, bareboat charters and restraints.  
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11. Intangibles (cont.) 

Allocation of goodwill to cash-generating units 

 

The cash-generating units are aligned to the Chief Operating decision makers reporting structure, the structure for which 
budgets and strategic plans are prepared, the day-to-day management of the business and the level at which goodwill is 
monitored.  The carrying amount of goodwill allocated to cash-generating units that are significant individually or in aggregate 
is set out below. 

 

2014 2013 

 Cash Generating Units                                                                                                                   $‘000                          $‘000 

Workforce Services  102,549 102,549 

Technical Professionals 24,302 24,302 

Swan Contract Personnel 36,820 36,820 

Ativo/Thomas & Coffey 30,341 8,465 

Skilled Offshore 217,106 168,414 

Total Goodwill 411,118 340,550 

Allocation of other intangibles to cash-generating units 

The carrying amount of indefinite life ‗Other Intangibles‘ allocated to cash-generating units that are significant individually, 
or in aggregate, are as follows: 

2014 2013 

$‘000 $‘000 

SKILLED Group trademark and brandname 14,000 14,000 

 

Indefinite life intangibles of $14,000,000 (2013: $14,000,000) consist of the SKILLED trademark and brand name. The trademark 
and brand name were acquired externally and are protected by legal rights that are renewable at an insignificant cost. 

Key assumptions 

The key assumptions used in the value-in-use calculations for the various significant cash-generating units are as follows: 

The recoverable amount of the cash-generating units is determined based on a value-in-use calculation which uses cash flow 
projections based on financial forecasts approved by management covering a three-year period, then a constant growth rate of 
2.5% (2013: 2.5%) for two years, then 2.5% (2013: 2.5%) into perpetuity and discount rates applied to each cash-generating 
unit of between 13.5% and 14.5% (2013: between 13.5% and 14.5%). 

The discount rates represent the current market assessment of the risks specific to each CGU, taking into consideration the 
time value of money and individual risks of the underlying assets that have not been incorporated into the cash flow estimate s. 
The discount rate calculation is based on the specific circumstances of the Group and its CGUs and is derived from its 
weighted average cost of capital (WACC) which takes into account both debt and equity.  

Impact of possible changes in key assumptions 

The calculation of value in use for the cash generating units is most sensitive to the assumptions on gross margins, growth 
rates used to extrapolate cash flows beyond the forecast period and discount rates.  

A decrease in demand volumes and/or pricing can lead to declines in gross margins. A sustained decrease in gross margins 
would increase the risk of impairment. A decrease in growth rate assumptions used to extrapolate cash flows beyond the three 
year forecast period will result in reduced valuations of cash generating units. A material reduction in the long term growth rate 
would increase the risk of impairment. An increase in the discount rate will result in reduced valuations of cash generating 
units and would increase the risk of impairment. 

The Directors believe that any reasonably possible change in the key assumptions on which the recoverable amount is based, 
would not cause the aggregate carrying amount to exceed the aggregate recoverable amount of these cash -generating units 
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12. Equity accounted investments 

Carrying amount of interest in joint ventures 

2014 2013 

$‘000 $‘000 

Offshore Marine Services Alliance Pty Ltd 22,303 33,274 

GSS Broadsword Marine JV Pty Ltd 579 – 

Total carrying amount of interests in joint ventures 22,882 33,274 

 
Offshore Marine Services Alliance Pty Ltd 

Offshore Marine Services Alliance Pty Ltd (OMSA), a company incorporated in Australia, is engaged in the provision of 
marine logistics services to Australia‘s offshore oil and gas industry and supports the Group‘s position as a leader in t he 
provision of offshore marine staffing and vessel chartering and management services.   

OMSA is structured as a separate vehicle and provides the Consolidated Entity rights to the net assets of the entity.  
Accordingly, the Consolidated Entity has classified the investment in OMSA as a joint venture. 

OMSA was established in 2009 between the Consolidated Entity, Ezion Investment Pte Ltd (―Ezion‖), and PB Sea -Tow 
Holdings (BVI) Limited (―PB Sea-Tow‖) with each partner having an equal interest in the equity ownership of the venture.  
During the 2013 financial year, Ezion offered its shareholding for sale and on 29 February 2013 the Consolidated Entity and 
PB Sea-Tow each exercised their rights under the OMSA Shareholder Agreement to increase their shareholding from 33.3% to 
50.0% respectively for $17,500,000. 

Bank guarantees totalling $17,288,000 have been provided to a financier of OMSA as security for bank guarantees that the 
financier in turn provides to third parties on behalf of OMSA.  In addition, an unlimited performance guarantee has been 
provided by Skilled Group Limited to third parties in respect of the operations of the joint venture.  It is intended the joint 
venture be self-funding, however, the joint venture has a call option for debt and equity funding from its shareholders.  This call 
option has not been exercised over the life of the joint venture.  There were no other contingent liabilities or commitments for 
expenditure at 30 June 2014 (2013: nil). 

Summarised financial information in respect of OMSA is as follows: 

 

2014 2013 

$‘000 $‘000 

Current assets
1
 85,339 71,398 

Non-current assets 14,076 18,147 

Current liabilities
2
 (54,372) (21,746) 

Non-current liabilities (10,027) (12,101) 

Net assets 35,016 55,698 

   

Revenue 294,494 304,029 

Expenses (270,007) (277,932) 

Depreciation and amortisation (11,415) (7,128) 

Interest revenue 281 518 

Profit before tax 13,353 19,487 

Income tax expense (4,037) (5,869) 

Profit after tax and total comprehensive income 9,316 13,618 

Cash dividends received by the Consolidated Entity 15,000 – 

 

1 Includes cash and cash equivalents amounting to $1,230,000 (2013: $22,997,000). 

2 Includes financial liabilities (other than trade and other payables and provisions) amounting to $51,000 (2013: $49,000). 

 

The summarised financial information presented is the amounts included in the financial statements of the joint venture, 
adjusted for acquisition fair value adjustments and for differences in accounting policies.  The fair value adjustments princ ipally 
relate to goodwill and identifiable intangible assets.  Identifiable intangible assets are being amortised over 2.5 years.  All 
operations are continuing. 
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12. Equity accounted investments (cont.) 

 

Offshore Marine Services Alliance Pty Ltd (cont.) 

A reconciliation of the summarised financial information to the carrying amounts of OMSA is detailed below:  

 

2014 2013 

$‘000 $‘000 

Group share of 50.0% (2013: 50.0%) of net assets excluding fair value adjustments 
on acquisition 

12,713 22,424 

Goodwill and intangible assets on acquisition less accumulated amortisation 9,590 10,850 

Carrying amount of interest in joint venture 22,303 33,274 

   

Profit and total comprehensive income excluding fair value adjustments 10,576 14,248 

Amortisation of identifiable intangible assets on acquisition (1,260) (630) 

Profit and total comprehensive income 9,316 13,618 

   

Share of profit and total comprehensive income (50.0% shareholding) 4,028 3,852 

Share of profit and total comprehensive income (33.3% shareholding) – 1,849 

Share of profit and total comprehensive income 4,028 5,701 

 

GSS Broadsword Marine JV Pty Ltd 

The Consolidated Entity has a 50% interest in an immaterial joint venture, namely, GSS Broadsword Marine JV Pty Ltd  (the 
―GSS JV‖).  The GSS JV is an unlisted company based in Darwin Australia specialising in marine logistics services to the Oil 
and Gas industry.  The following table analyses the carrying amount and share of loss and other comprehensive income of this 
joint venture: 

 

2014 2013 

$‘000 $‘000 

Carrying amount of interest in joint venture 579 - 

Share of loss and other comprehensive income
1
 279 - 

 
1 Net of amortisation of acquired intangibles of $448,000 (2013: $nil). 
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13. Deferred tax assets and liabilities 

2014 2013 

$‘000 $‘000 

RECOGNISED DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES   
Deferred tax assets comprise:   
Temporary differences 21,772 19,525 

The deferred tax asset has been reduced by the provision for deferred income 
tax attributable to temporary differences 

4,170 3,848 

 

Taxable and temporary differences comprise the following: 

2014 Opening 
balance 

$‘000 

Acquisition of 
subsidiaries 

$‘000 

Charged to 
income 

$‘000 

Charged to 
equity 

$‘000 

Closing 

balance 

$‘000 

Gross deferred tax liabilities      
Intangible and other assets (1,503) (5,382) 4,417 – (2,468) 

Property, plant and equipment (2,345) (151) 794 – (1,702) 

Gross deferred tax liabilities (3,848) (5,533) 5,211 – (4,170) 

Gross deferred tax assets      
Provisions and accruals 18,783 2,720 (955) – 20,548 

Doubtful debts 124 62 65 – 251 

Other 618 1,014 (1,609) 950 973 

Gross deferred tax assets 19,525 3,796 (2,499) 950 21,772 

Net deferred tax assets 15,677 (1,737) 2,712 950 17,602 

 

  Opening  Charged  Charged Closing  

 balance to income  to equity              balance 

2013 $‘000  $‘000  $‘000 $‘000 
Gross deferred tax liabilities     
Intangible and other assets (3,474) 1,971 – (1,503) 

Property, plant and equipment (314) (2,031) – (2,345) 

Gross deferred tax liabilities (3,788) (60) – (3,848) 

Gross deferred tax assets     
Provisions and accruals 21,834 (3,051) – 18,783 

Doubtful debts 1,821 (1,697) – 124 

Other 1,644 (1,904) 878 618 

Gross deferred tax assets 25,299 (6,652) 878 19,525 

Net deferred tax assets 21,511 (6,712) 878 15,677 

Unrecognised deferred tax assets 

Unused tax losses for which no deferred tax assets have been recognised are attributable to the following:  

2014 2013 

$‘000 $‘000 

Tax losses (revenue in nature) – 129 
Tax losses (capital in nature) 152 152 

 152 281 
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14. Payables 

2014 2013 

$‘000 $‘000 

Current   
Trade payables and accruals 98,507 77,866 
Deferred purchase consideration – note 22 8,900 – 
Goods and services tax payable 16,164 16,343 
 123,571 94,209 

Non-Current   

Deferred and contingent purchase consideration – note 22 20,107  – 

 20,107  – 

 

Terms and conditions of the above financial liabilities: 

• Trade payables and accruals are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on 30-day terms. 

• For terms and conditions relating to deferred purchase consideration, refer to Note 22. 

• Goods and services tax payable is non-interest bearing and is settled monthly throughout the financial year.  

 

15. Borrowings 

2014 2013 

$‘000 $‘000 

Current    
Bank overdraft

(i) 468 629 

Bank debt facilities
(ii) 4,000 – 

Finance lease liabilities
(iii)

  538 665 

 5,006 1,294 

Non-Current    

Bank debt facilities
(ii) 172,600 55,896 

Finance lease liabilities
(iii)

   324 517 

 172,924 56,413 

(i) Secured by fixed and floating charge over all the assets of the Consolidated Entity, or standby letter of credit. 

(ii) Secured by fixed and floating charge over all the assets of the Consolidated Entity.  

(iii) Secured over the assets leased, the current market value of which exceeds the value of the finance lease liability  
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16. Provisions 

2014 2013 

$‘000 $‘000 

Current   

Employee benefits  42,623 36,529 

Workers compensation self insurance 308 1,606 

Provision for restoration 2,860 2,925 

Other  3,641 2,556 

 49,432 43,616 

   

Non- Current   

Employee benefits  6,044 5,270 

Workers compensation self insurance 5,796 6,801 

Provision for restoration      6,436      938 

Other  1,409               – 

 19,685 13,009 

 
 

 Employee 
benefits 

$‘000 

Workers 

Compensation 

$‘000 

Provision for 
restoration 

$‘000 

Other 

$‘000 

Total 

$‘000 

Balance as at 30 June 2013 41,799 8,407 3,863 2,556 56,625 

Acquired from new business  7,706 – 5,498 5,101 18,305 

Additional provisions recognised 21,977 – 439 144 22,560 

Reductions arising from payments/ other 
sacrifices of future economic benefits 

(22,815) (4,822) – (2,826) (30,463) 

Changes resulting from the re-measurement of 
the estimated future sacrifice of the settlement 
of the provision without cost to the 
Consolidated Entity 

– 2,519 (504) 75 2,090 

Balance as at 30 June 2014 48,667 6,104 9,296 5,050 69,117 
Included in the financial statements as:      

Current  42,623 308 2,860 3,641 49,432 

Non-current  6,044 5,796 6,436 1,409 19,685 

 48,667 6,104 9,296 5,050 69,117 
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17. Leases 

 
2014 2013 

$‘000 $‘000 

(A) FINANCE LEASES   
Finance lease commitments:   

Not later than 1 year 586 748 
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 345 547 

Minimum finance lease payments 931 1,295 
Deduct future finance charges (69) (113) 
Present value of finance lease liabilities 862 1,182 
Disclosed in the financial statements as:   
Borrowings:   

Current (note 15) 538 665 
Non-current (note 15) 324 517 

 862 1,182 
 

There are no other commitments for expenditure, at the end of the financial year, other than those disclosed in the financial  
statements. 

The finance lease agreements are for periods between two and five years. The Consolidated Entity has options to purchase 
the equipment at its residual value at the conclusion of the lease agreements.  

2014 2013 

$‘000 $‘000 

(B) OPERATING LEASES   
Non-cancellable operating leases:   

Not later than 1 year 12,947 11,007 

Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years 25,802 23,326 

Later than 5 years 11,073 13,601 

 49,822 47,934 

The Consolidated Entity leases its office premises. The rental period of each individual  lease agreement varies between one 
and 10 years with renewal options ranging from one to five years. The majority of lease agreements are subject to rental 
adjustments in line with movements in the Consumer Price Index or market rentals.  

The Consolidated Entity leases the majority of its computer equipment from external suppliers over a lease period of three 

to five years with payments being quarterly in advance. At the end of the lease period the Consolidated Entity has a 

number of options available with respect to the equipment, none of which include penalty charges.  

The Consolidated Entity enters into bareboat charter arrangements for marine vessels in relation to its SKILLED Offshore 

businesses in Australia. The vessels are chartered on individual lease agreements that vary between periods of up to five 

years with renewable options pursuant to the underlying contracts.  
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18. Issued capital 

2014 2013 

$‘000 $‘000 

235,254,496 fully paid ordinary shares (2013: 233,533,526) 352,986 349,661 

The Company does not have any authorised capital as part of its constitution. 

(A) FULLY PAID ORDINARY SHARES  

2014 2014 2013 2013 

No. ‘000  $‘000  No. ‘000  $‘000 

Balance at the beginning of the financial year 233,533 349,661 233,487 349,500 

Issue of shares under Employee Share Acquisition Plan
(i) – – 46 161 

Share based payments 1,721 3,325 – – 

Balance at the end of the financial year 235,254 352,986 233,533 349,661 

Fully paid ordinary shares carry one vote per share and carry the right to dividends.  

(i)    Net of issuance costs of $nil (2013: $nil). 

 

(B) SHARES HELD BY SUBSIDIARIES 

Allskills Pty Ltd, a wholly owned subsidiary, held 418,500 (2013: 418,500) shares in SKILLED Group Limited at 30 June 2014. 
These shares were held for the benefit of the SKILLED Group Limited Employee Share Acquisition Plan. 
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19. Share-based payments 
 

A description and key terms of share-based payments is disclosed in the Remuneration Report.  

 
SHARE OPTIONS 

 

Grant date Exercise 

price 

$ 

Expiry date Balance at 

start of year 

Number 

Granted 

during the 

year 

Number 

Exercised 

during the 

year 

Number 

Forfeited / 

Expired 

during the 

year 

Number 

Balance at 

end of year 

Number 

Fair value 

$ 

2014         

21/10/2008 2.52 20/10/2014 1,253,000 – – (1,253,000) – 0.71 

23/11/2010 1.47 23/11/2016 2,419,593 – (1,679,938) (739,655) – 0.54 

20/12/2013 3.08 19/12/2019 – 875,000 – – 875,000 0.66 

20/12/2013 3.08 19/12/2019 – 875,000 – – 875,000 0.63
(ii)

 

   3,672,593 1,750,000 (1,679,938) (1,992,655) 1,750,000  

WAP
(i)

   1.83 3.08 1.47 2.13 3.08  

         

2013         

15/11/2006 5.81 14/11/2012 81,000 – – (81,000) – 1.62 

2/11/2007 5.29 1/11/2013 309,000 – – (309,000) – 1.47 

21/10/2008 2.52 20/10/2014 1,253,000 – – – 1,253,000 0.71 

19/11/2009 2.28 18/11/2015 346,000 – – (346,000) – 0.72 

23/11/2010 1.47 23/11/2016 2,419,593 – – – 2,419,593 0.54 

12/08/2011 2.28 18/11/2015 50,000 – – (50,000) – 0.72 

   
4,458,593 – – (786,000) 3,672,593 

 

WAP
(i)

 
  

2.18 – – 3.83 1.83 
 

 

(i) Denotes weighted average price 
(ii) Grants relate to share options measured against relative total shareholder return, which is a market based measure.  All other 

grants are measured against earnings per share, a non-market based measure. 

 

The share options outstanding at 30 June 2014 have an exercise price of $3.08 (2013: ranging from $1.47 to $2.52) and a 
weighted average contractual life of 6 years.    
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19. Share-based payments (cont.) 
 

PERFORMANCE RIGHTS 

 

Grant date Expiry date Balance at 

start of year 

Number 

Granted 

during the 

year 

Number 

Exercised 

during the 

year 

Number 

Forfeited / 

Expired 

during the 

year 

Number 

Balance at 

end of year 

Number 

Fair value 

$ 

2014        

23/11/2010 23/11/2013 776,929 – (204,977) (571,952) – 1.47 

20/10/2011 30/09/2013 337,838 – (337,838) – – 1.47 

20/10/2011 30/09/2014 337,838 – – – 337,838 1.47 

20/10/2011 20/10/2014 54,404 – – (15,026) 39,378 1.60 

22/12/2011 22/12/2014 884,897 – – (23,903) 860,994 1.54 

22/12/2011 22/12/2014 884,897 – – (23,903) 860,994 0.89
(i)

 

30/11/2012 29/11/2015 758,580 – – (43,333) 715,247 1.95 

30/11/2012 29/11/2015 758,580 – – (43,333) 715,247 1.23
(i)

 

20/12/2013 19/12/2016 – 929,500 – (3,333) 926,167 2.75 

20/12/2013 19/12/2016 – 929,500 – (3,333) 926,167 2.19
(i)

 

2/05/2014 1/05/2017 – 146,500 – – 146,500 2.58 

2/05/2014 1/05/2017 – 82,500 – – 82,500 2.44 

  4,793,963 2,088,000 (542,815) (728,116) 5,611,032  

        

2013        

19/11/2009 18/11/2012 374,600 – – 374,600 – 2.11 

23/11/2010 23/11/2013 841,929 – – 65,000 776,929 1.47 

20/10/2011 30/09/2013 337,838 – – – 337,838 1.47 

20/10/2011 30/09/2014 337,838 – – – 337,838 1.47 

20/10/2011 20/10/2014 54,404 – – – 54,404 1.60 

22/12/2011 22/12/2014 945,378 – – 60,481 884,897 1.54 

22/12/2011 22/12/2014 945,379 – – 60,482 884,897 0.89
(i)

 

30/11/2012 29/11/2015 – 771,080 – 12,500 758,580 1.95 

30/11/2012 29/11/2015 – 771,080 – 12,500 758,580 1.23
(i)

 

  
3,837,366 1,542,160 – 585,563 4,793,963 

 
 

(i) Grants relate to performance rights measured against relative total shareholder return, which is a market based measure.  All  other 
grants are measured against non-market based measures, either earnings per share or employee retention 

 

The performance rights outstanding at 30 June 2014 have a weighted average contractual life of 3 years.  
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20. Reserves 

 

2014 2013 

$‘000 $‘000 

Employee equity-settled benefits reserve 891 3,499 

Hedging reserve – (65) 

Foreign currency translation reserve (725) (1,296) 

Balance at the end of the financial year 166 2,138 

(A) EMPLOYEE EQUITY-SETTLED BENEFITS RESERVE 

2014 2013 

$‘000 $‘000 

Balance at the beginning of the financial year 3,499 2,980 

Share-based payments (2,608) 519 

Balance at the end of the financial year 891 3,499 

The employee equity-settled benefits reserve is used to recognise the fair value of options and rights issued but not yet 
exercised. 

(B) HEDGING RESERVE 

2014 2013 

$‘000 $‘000 

Balance at the beginning of the financial year (65) (421) 

Interest rate swaps 93 565 

Income tax related to gains/losses recognised in equity (28) (170) 

Transferred to profit or loss:   
Interest rate swaps – (56) 

Income tax related to amounts transferred to profit or loss – 17 

Balance at the end of the financial year – (65) 

The hedging reserve represents hedging gains and losses recognised on the effective portion of cash flow hedges.  The 
cumulative deferred gain or loss on the hedge is recognised in profit or loss when the hedged transaction impacts the profit or 
loss, or is included as a basis adjustment to the non-financial hedged item. Refer note 2(M) to the financial statements.  
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20. Reserves (cont.) 

(C) FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION RESERVE 

2014 2013 

$‘000 $‘000 

Balance at the beginning of the financial year (1,296) (2,467) 

Translation of foreign operations 571 1,171 

Balance at the end of the financial year    (725) (1,296) 

Exchange differences relating to foreign currency monetary items forming part of the net investment in foreign operations and 
the translation of foreign controlled entities are brought to account by entries made directly to the foreign currency transl ation 
reserve. Refer note 2(T) to the financial statements. 

21. Contingent liabilities 

2014 2013 

$‘000 $‘000 

Bank guarantees for various contracts 57,284 34,113 

Other contingent liabilities 

A number of legal claims exist where the outcome is uncertain.  Where practicable, provision has been made in the financial 
statements to recognise the estimated cost to settle the claims based on best estimate assumptions and legal advice where 
relevant.  The actual amounts settled in relation to the outstanding matters may differ to those estimated. 

Contractual obligations exist in relation to permanent field employees in the event certain customer labour and maintenance 
services contracts end, such as termination payments in the event employees cannot be re -deployed.   No provision is 
recognised in the financial statements until such time as there is a present obligation to make a termination payment to the 
employee. 

An unlimited performance guarantee has been provided by Skilled Group Limited to third parties in respect of the operations 
of OMSA.  Further details are provided in Note 12.  No provision is recognised in the financial statements until there is a 
present obligation to make a payment pursuant to the guarantee. 
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22. Business combinations 

Acquisition of Broadsword Marine Contractors Pty Ltd 

On 3 July 2013, the Consolidated Entity acquired 100% of the voting shares of Broadsword Marine Contractors Pty Ltd 
("Broadsword"), an unlisted company based in Darwin, Australia specialising in marine logistics services to the Oil & Gas 
industry. The acquisition is expected to provide the Consolidated Entity with a strong growth platform in marine services to 
complement the existing Offshore Marine Services business and the Offshore Marine Services Alliance joint venture.  

Assets acquired and liabilities assumed 

The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of Broadsword as at the date of acquisition were:  

 Fair value 

recognised 

on acquisition 

 $‘000 
Assets  

Cash and cash equivalents 2,511 

Trade receivables 7,243 

Inventories 

 

6 

► Prepayments and other assets 781 

► Property, plant and equipment 25,952 

► Intangibles – customer contracts 3,660 

► Equity accounted investment 859 

► Deferred tax assets 1,352 

 42,364 

Liabilities  

► Trade and other payables (1,748) 

► Interest-bearing liabilities (8,217) 

► Provisions and accruals (839) 

► Contingent liability (820) 

► Deferred tax liability (1,098) 

 (12,722) 

Total identifiable net assets at fair value 29,642 

Goodwill arising on acquisition 46,109 

Purchase consideration transferred 75,751 

 
The fair value of identifiable assets and liabilities included in the Consolidated Entity‘s interim financial report as at an d for 
the half year ended 31 December 2013 was based on provisional values.  The valuation is complete at 30 June 2014 and 
the acquisition date fair value of property, plant and equipment was $25,952,000, a decrease of $541,000 over the 
provisional value.  This and other adjustments resulted in a corresponding increase in goodwill on acquisition of $549,000 
over the provisional value, with the final value totalling $46,109,000. 

The trade receivables comprise gross contractual amounts due of $7,263,000, of which $20,000 was expected to be 
uncollectible at the acquisition date. 

The goodwill is attributable mainly to the skills and technical talent of Broadsword's work force and the growth potential of 
the business working in conjunction with SKILLED's existing Offshore Marine Services business.  None of the goodwill is 
expected to be deductible for income tax purposes. 

From the date of acquisition, Broadsword has contributed $58,967,000 of revenue and $8,452,000 of profit before tax to the 
Consolidated Entity‘s result, which includes profit from operations, acquisition and integration costs, amortisation of acqui red 
intangibles and notional interest on deferred consideration. There would be no material difference to the contribution of 
revenue and profit before tax had the acquisition taken place at the beginning of the financial year.  
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22. Business combinations (cont.) 
 

Consideration transferred 

The following summarises the major classes of consideration transferred:  

  $‘000 

Cash 46,696 

Deferred consideration 24,417 

Contingent consideration 4,638 

► Total consideration 

 

75,751 

 

Deferred consideration 

The purchase consideration includes deferred consideration payable in equal instalments over three years commencing 
twelve months from the date of acquisition.   The present value of the deferred consideration of $24,417,000 was based on a 
weighted average discount rate of 4.5%. 

Contingent consideration 

A contingent amount up to a maximum of $24,500,000 may be payable if three-year EBITDA growth exceeds agreed stretch 
targets and is expected to be finalised within four months of the financial year ending 30 June 2016.  As at the acquisition 
date, the fair value of the contingent consideration was estimated to be $4,638,000 based on a probability assessment of 
achieving the targets and a discount rate of 4.5%.  The provision for contingent consideration was reduced by $1, 386,000 in 
the year ended 30 June 2014 with a corresponding gain recognised in the income statement, based on a reassessment of 
the probability of achieving the targets. 

Acquisition and related costs 

In the current financial period, the Consolidated Entity incurred acquisition and integration costs of $495,000 related to 
external legal and other advisor fees and costs associated with integrating Broadsword into the SKILLED Group.  These 
costs have been included in other expenses in the Consolidated Entity's  income statement.  In addition, costs of $315,000 
were incurred as an early repayment fee in relation to refinancing Broadsword‘s existing finance lease liabilities and 
replacing them with debt under SKILLED's senior debt facility.  The repayment fee has been included in interest expense in 
the Consolidated Entity's income statement. 

Analysis of cash flows on acquisition 

  $‘000 

Cash price paid as purchase consideration (included in cash flows from investing 
activities) 

46,696 

Acquisition and related costs (included in cash flows from operating activities) 495 

Net cash acquired with subsidiary (included in cash flows from investing activities)  (2,511) 

Early repayment fees on lease liabilities (included in cash flows from operating 
activities) 

315 

Net cash flows on acquisition 

 

44,995 
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22. Business combinations (cont.) 

Acquisition of T&C Services Pty Ltd (Thomas & Coffey) 

On 11 February 2014, the Consolidated Entity acquired 100% of the voting rights of T & C Services Pty Limited (―T&C 
Services‖) a subsidiary of Thomas & Coffey Limited for cash consideration totalling $33,964,000.  T&C Services is an 
unlisted company, which provides a broad range of maintenance and asset management services to the manufacturing, 
mining, heavy industry and utilities sectors in Australia predominantly in New South Wales and Queensland.  The acquisition 
is highly complementary to the existing maintenance service offering provided by the ATIVO business.  

Assets acquired and liabilities assumed 

The provisionally determined fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of T&C Services as at the date of acquisi tion 
were: 

 Fair value 

recognised 

on acquisition 

 $‘000 
Assets  

Cash and cash equivalents 156 

Trade receivables 22,397 

Inventories 

 

858 

Prepayments and other assets 110 

Property, plant and equipment 3,209 

Intangibles – customer contracts and brandname 16,100 

Deferred tax assets 2,990 

 45,820 

Liabilities  

Trade and other payables (7,195) 

Interest-bearing liabilities (338) 

Provisions and accruals (20,217) 

Contingent liability (1,000) 

Deferred tax liability (4,981) 

 (33,731) 

Total identifiable net assets at fair value 12,089 

Goodwill arising on acquisition 21,875 

Purchase consideration transferred 33,964 

 

The fair values are provisional pending completion of the valuation process.  The finalisation of the fair value of the assets 
acquired and liabilities assumed will be completed within 12 months of the acquisition.  

The trade receivables comprise gross contractual amounts due of $13,816,000, of which $187,000 was expected to be 
uncollectible at the acquisition date. 

The goodwill is attributable mainly to the skills and technical talent of T&C Services‘ work force and the growth potential o f 
the business working in conjunction with SKILLED's existing ATIVO business.  None of the goodwill recognised is expected 
to be deductible for income tax purposes. 

From the date of acquisition, T&C Services has contributed $47,928,000 of revenue and $100,000 of profit before ta x to the 
Consolidated Entity‘s result, which includes profit from operations, acquisition and integration costs and amortisation of 
acquired intangibles. T&C Services is a newly formed entity established to effect the acquisition of certain components of 
Thomas & Coffey Limited‘s business.  As such, historical financial information for T&C Services relating to the period prior t o 
acquisition is not available to determine the contribution of revenue and profit before tax had the acquisition taken place a t 
the beginning of the financial year. 
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22. Business combinations (cont.) 
 

Acquisition and related costs 

In the current financial period, the Consolidated Entity incurred acquisition and integration costs of $3,249,000 related to 
external legal and other advisor fees and costs associated with integrating T&C Services into the SKILLED Group.  These 
costs have been included in other expenses in the Consolidated Entity's income statement.  

Analysis of cash flows on acquisition 

  $‘000 

Cash price paid as purchase consideration (included in cash flows from investing 
activities) 

33,964 

Acquisition and related costs (included in cash flows from operating activities) 3,249 

Net cash acquired with subsidiary (included in cash flows from investing activities)  (156) 

Net cash flows on acquisition 

 

37,057 

 

Net cash outflows for prior years‘ acquisitions 

2014 2013 

$‘000 $‘000 

Payment of deferred consideration - 9,508 

 

During the prior year, deferred consideration payments were made in respect of the previous acquisitions of OMS UK and 
OMS International.  

 

23. Superannuation contributions 

2014 2013 

$‘000 $‘000 

Superannuation contributions provided for employees via the following 
superannuation funds:   

Complying superannuation funds
(i) 104,231 107,034 

(i)    The Consolidated Entity makes contributions to superannuation plans in accordance with the greater of the Superannuation Guar antee 
Charge legislation, or the terms of applicable industrial awards. Each of the plans are structured using external superannuat ion fund 
managers, with the result that the Consolidated Entity is not liable to meet any additional liability in the event of termina tion of any fund 
member. The funds are of the accumulation type. 
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24. Subsidiaries 
 

Ownership interest 

Country of  2014 2013 

Name of entity  Note  incorporation  %  % 

Parent entity     
SKILLED Group Limited (a) Australia   
Controlled entities     
Allskills Pty Ltd (b) Australia 100 100 

Ativo Pty Ltd (c) Australia 100 100 

ATIVO Coal Services Pty Ltd (b) Australia 100 – 

T&C Services Pty Ltd (c) Australia 100 – 

Thomas & Coffey (QLD) Pty Ltd (c) Australia 100 – 

Catalyst Recruitment Systems Pty Ltd (c) Australia 100 100 

ACN 101 075 512 Pty Ltd (b) Australia 100 100 

Catalyst Quality Service Pty Ltd (b) Australia 100 100 

Jet Tasmania Pty Ltd (b) Australia 100 100 

Mosaic Recruitment Pty Ltd (c) Australia 100 100 

The Green & Green Group Pty Ltd (b) Australia 100 100 

Extra Group Pty Ltd (c) Australia 100 100 

Extraman (NT) Pty Ltd (b) Australia 100 100 

Extraman (HR) Pty Ltd (b) Australia 100 100 

Skilled Offshore (Australia) Pty Ltd (e) Australia 100 100 

Offshore Marine Services Alliance Pty Ltd (b) Australia 50 – 

Offshore Marine Services Pte Ltd (a)                 Singapore 100 100 

Skilled Healthcare Holdings Pty Ltd (c) Australia 100 100 

Nursing Australia Pty Ltd (b) Australia 100 100 

HR Link No. 2 Pty Ltd (b) Australia 100 100 

 HR Link No. 1 Pty Ltd (b) Australia 100 100 

Nursing (Australia) Holdings Pty Ltd (b) Australia 100 100 

Locumitis Pty Ltd (b) Australia 100 100 

Mantech Systems Pty Ltd (c) Australia 100 100 

Medistaff Pty Ltd (b) Australia 100 100 
Origin Education Services Pty Ltd (b) Australia 100 100 

Origin Health Support Services Pty Ltd (b) Australia 100 100 

Skilled Healthcare Pty Ltd (c) Australia 100 100 

ProSafe Personnel Pty Ltd (b) Australia 100 100 

PeopleCo. Pty Ltd (c) Australia 100 100 

SKILLED Group International Pty Ltd (c) Australia 100 100 

Offshore Marine Services Ltd (e) Malaysia 100 100 

OMS DMCEST (e) Dubai 100 100 

    Offshore Marine Services FZ LLC (e) Dubai 100 100 

Offshore Marine Holdings (Malta) Limited (e) Malta 100 100 

Offshore Marine Services (Malta) Limited (e) Malta 100 100 

Skilled Offshore (Holdings) LLC (f) USA 100 – 

Skilled Offshore LLC (f) USA 100 – 

    Point 2 Point Travel Limited (e) Malta 100 100 

SKILLED Group NZ Holdings Limited (a) New Zealand 100 100 
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24. Subsidiaries (cont.) 
 

Ownership interest 

Country of  2014 2013 

Name of entity  Note  incorporation  %  % 
Skilled Offshore (NZ) Ltd (a) New Zealand 100 100 

SKILLED International Sourcing Pty Ltd (b) Australia 100 100 

Broadsword Marine Contractors Pty. Ltd (c) Australia 100 – 

GSS Broadsword Marine JV Pty Ltd (b) Australia 50 – 

SKILLED Group UK Ltd (e)       United Kingdom 100 100 

Offshore Marine Services UK Ltd (e)       United Kingdom 100 100 

SKILLED Maritime Services Pty Ltd (b) Australia 100 100 

SKILLED Operations (WA) Pty Ltd (b) Australia 100 100 

SKILLED Rail Services Pty Ltd (a) Australia 100 100 

SKILLED Resources Pty Ltd (b) Australia 100 100 
SKILLED Offshore Pty Ltd (b) Australia 100 100 
SKILLED Workforce Solutions (NSW) Pty Ltd (c) Australia 100 100 
Swan Contract Personnel Pty Ltd (c) Australia 100 100 
TESA Group Pty Ltd (c) Australia 100 100 

TESA Mining (Aust) Pty Limited (c) Australia 100 100 
TESA Mining (NSW) Pty Limited (c) Australia 100 100 
TESA Mining (U/G) Pty Limited (b) Australia 100 100 
Damstra Mining Services Pty Ltd (b) Australia 100 100 
HVA (Qld) Pty Limited (b) Australia 100 100 
HVA Support Services Pty Limited (b) Australia 100 100 
HVA Technical Services Pty Limited (b) Australia 100 100 
Waycon Services Pty Limited (c) Australia 100 100 

Workforce Solutions (No 1) Pty Ltd (b) Australia 100 100 

 
All controlled entities carry on business only in the country of formation or incorporation. Allskills Pty Ltd is the trustee of the SKILLED Group 
Limited Share Plan Trust. 

Swan Contract Personnel Pty Ltd is the trustee of the Swan Drafting Unit Trust.  

Legend: 

(a)  Audited by Ernst & Young 

(b) These controlled entities are classified as small proprietary companies and in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001 are re lieved 
from the requirement to prepare, audit and lodge financial reports.  

(c) These wholly-owned controlled entities have entered into a deed of cross guarantee with SKILLED Group Limited, pursuant to ASIC 
Class Order 98/1418 and have been relieved from the requirement to prepare and lodge an audited financial report.  

(d) Entity in liquidation 

(e) Audited by Ernst & Young International 

(f) These controlled entities are incorporated in the USA and are relieved from the requirement to prepare, audit and lodge financial 
reports. 
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24. Subsidiaries (cont.) 
 

The consolidated income statement and balance sheet of the entities, which are party to the deed of cross-guarantee and are 
part of the closed group are as follows: 

 

2014 2013 

$‘000 $‘000 

Income statement   
Revenue 1,409,054 1,440,382 

Other revenue (238) 315 

Dividends Received 43,000 26,346 

Gain/(loss) on sale of businesses and fixed assets 215 163 

Employee and sub-contractor related costs (1,280,973) (1,274,773) 

Raw materials and consumables used (18,233) (5,347) 

Office occupancy related costs (13,117) (11,980) 

Depreciation and amortisation expense (15,929) (7,577) 

Finance costs (9,503) (4,051) 

Other expenses (53,094) (111,836) 

Profit/(loss) before income tax expense 61,182  51,642 

Income tax (expense)/benefit 2,128 (10,378) 

Profit/(loss) attributable to members of the parent entity 63,310 41,264 

 

2014 2013 

$‘000 $‘000 

Balance sheet   
Current assets   
Cash and cash equivalents 2,082 10,855 

Receivables 348,625 212,349 

Inventories 677 145 

Other 2,460 3,674 

Total current assets 353,844 227,023 

Non-current assets   
Receivables 2,627 1,690 

Property, plant and equipment 85,906 15,034 

Goodwill 234,334 166,313 

Other intangibles 60,237 45,293 

Other financial assets 171,721 170,635 

Deferred tax assets 7,953 7,376 

Total non-current assets 562,778 406,341 

Total assets 916,622 633,364 
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24. Subsidiaries (cont.) 
 

2014 2013 

$‘000 $‘000 
Current liabilities   
Payables 272,817 129,430 

Borrowings 4,538 665 

Current tax liabilities 1,933 12,742 

Other financial liabilities – 110 

Provisions 38,917 28,887 

Total current liabilities 318,205 171,834 

Non-current liabilities   
Payables 20,108 41,438 

Borrowings 155,413 42,950 

Provisions 15,868 12,225 

Total non-current liabilities 191,389 96,613 

Total liabilities 509,594 268,447 

Net assets 407,028 364,917 

Equity   
Issued capital 352,986 349,661 

Reserves 1,367 3,941 

Retained earnings 52,675 11,315 

Total equity 407,028 364,917 

Retained earnings   
Balance at the beginning of the financial year 11,315               4,802 

Adjustment to retained earnings in respect of changes to the deed 16,711  

Net profit 63,311 41,264 

Dividends provided for or paid (38,662) (35,046) 

Movements in other comprehensive income – 295 

Balance at the end of the financial year 52,675 11,315 
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25. Related party disclosures 

(A) EQUITY INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 

Details of the percentage of ordinary shares held in subsidiaries are disclosed in note 24 to the financial statements.  

(B) KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL COMPENSATION (INCLUDING DIRECTORS) 

2014 2013 

$ $ 

Short-term employee benefits 4,209,906 3,959,725 

Post-employment benefits 170,193 263,358 

Share-based payments 861,129 998,819 

Termination benefits 99,998 – 

Other long-term employee benefits –  (22,712) 

 5,341,226 5,199,190 

(C) TRANSACTIONS WITH OTHER RELATED PARTIES: 

2014 2013 

Related party  Type of transaction  2014 2013 Class of related party  $ $ 

Offshore Marine 

Services 

Alliance Pty Ltd 

Offshore marine staffing Normal 

commercial 

terms and 

conditions 

Normal 

commercial 

terms and 

conditions 

Joint Venture 79,378,000 83,663,986 

Details of guarantees provided by the Consolidated Entity in respect of the operations of Offshore Marine Services Alliance 
Pty Ltd are disclosed in note 12 to the financial statements. 

VA McFadden was a director of Leighton Holdings Ltd from June 2013 to May 2014.  Leighton Holdings Ltd is a SKILLED 
Group customer and transacts on normal commercial terms and conditions. 

MJ Findlay is a director of Royal Children‘s Hospital, Melbourne.  Royal Children‘s Hospital, Melbourne is a SKILLED Group 
customer and transacts on normal commercial terms and conditions. 

26. Remuneration of auditors 

 
  

2014 2013 

$ $ 

Amounts received or due and receivable by Ernst & Young (Australia)   
Audit and review of the financial report 639,400 530,177 

Other assurance services 117,000 32,500 

Tax and employment-related services – 40,692 

 756,400 603,369 

Amounts received or due and receivable by Ernst & Young (International)   
Audit and review of the financial report 62,000 49,323 

Other assurance services – – 

 62,000 49,323 
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27. Notes to the cash flow statement 
 

(A) RECONCILIATION OF CASH 

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash includes cash on hand and in banks and investments in money market 
instruments, net of outstanding bank overdrafts. Cash at the end of the financial year as shown in the cash flow statement is 
reconciled to the related items in the Balance Sheet as follows:  

2014 2013 

$‘000 $‘000 

Cash and short-term deposits 7,858 12,890 

Bank overdraft (468) (629) 

Cash assets 7,390 12,261 

(B) NON-CASH FINANCING AND INVESTING ACTIVITIES  

During the financial year, the Consolidated Entity:  

(i)  Acquired plant and equipment under finance lease with an aggregate value of $nil (2013: $nil). 

(ii) Acquired plant and equipment and leasehold improvements with an aggregate value of $3,842,000 (2013: $998,000) 
which did not generate a cash flow in the 2014 year and were included within current payable as at 30 June 2014. 

(C) FINANCING FACILITIES 

2014 2013 

$‘000 $‘000 

Bank overdraft facility, payable at call:   
Amount used 468 629 

Amount unused 10,761 10,185 

 11,229 10,814 

Syndicated bank debt facility and market rate advance facility 
subject to periodic roll-over:   

Amount used 177,172 56,074 

Amount unused 197,328 123,926 

 374,500 180,000 

The bank overdraft, syndicated bank debt facility and market rate advance facility are secured by a fixed and floating charge 
over the assets of the Consolidated Entity. The bank overdraft and market rate advance facility are subject to annual review.  
At 30 June 2014, the syndicated bank debt facility was $320 million in total comprising three tranches, being $100 million 
(maturing in August 2015), $90 million (maturing in August 2015) and $130 million (maturing in August 2016). The market 
rate advance facility is $22.5 million (maturing in December 2014). 
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28. Financial instruments 

Capital risk management 

The Consolidated Entity manages its capital to ensure that it will be able to continue as a going concern whilst maximising t he 
return to stakeholders through an optimal balance of debt and equity.  

The capital structure of the Consolidated Entity consists of debt, which includes the borrowings disclosed in note 15, the cash 
and cash equivalents disclosed in note 27, and equity attributable to equity holders of the parent, comprising issued capital , 
reserves and retained earnings as disclosed in the statement of changes in equity and notes 18 and 20. 

The Board regularly reviews its capital structure and considers market conditions, industry peers and stakeholder 
expectations in setting its capital structure. The efficacy and suitability of the Consolidated Entity‘s capital structure is 
regularly measured and includes a consideration of the (a) committed debt levels, (b) leverage (debt to EBITDA), (c) interest  
cover (EBITDA to interest expense) and (d) gearing (net debt to net debt plus equity).  

The Consolidated Entity‘s key capital structure financial metrics as at reporting date were as follows:  

2014 2013 

$‘000 $‘000 

Leverage   
(Net debt/EBITDA

(i)
) 1.8 0.5 

Interest cover   
(EBITDA

(i)
/Net interest expense(i)) 12.3 25.2 

Gearing   
(Net debt/Net debt + equity) 26% 9% 

(i)    EBITDA and net interest expense is as disclosed in note 30 Segment Reporting.  

 

In order to manage the optimal balance of debt and equity the Consolidated Entity may:  

• raise, refinance or retire debt; 

• issue or buy-back shares; 

• adjust the level of dividend payout ratio and the level of dividends to be paid; and/or  

• offer a Dividend Reinvestment Plan. 
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28. Financial instruments (cont.) 

Financial risk management 

The Consolidated Entity‘s financial risks include market risk (including interest rate risk and foreign exchange risk), credit risk 
and liquidity risk. The Consolidated Entity‘s overall strategy relating to financial risk management remains unchanged from 
2013. 

The carrying amount of the Consolidated Entity‘s financial assets and financial liabilities at the reporting date are as follows:  

2014 2013 

$‘000 $‘000 

Financial assets   
Cash and cash equivalents 7,858 12,890 

Current and non-current receivables 257,534 212,537 

 

2014 2013 

$‘000 $‘000 

Financial liabilities   
Loans and payables 318,633 151,916 

Derivatives held for trading – 16 

Derivatives in hedge relationships – 94 

The Consolidated Entity manages these risks in accordance with specific Board-approved policies and directives. Each of 
these risks is discussed in further detail in the following notes. 

Interest rate risk 

Interest rate risk is the effect on either the financial performance or capital value of the Consolidated Entity arising from  
movements in interest rates. The Consolidated Entity is exposed to interest rate risk as entities within the Consolidated Entity 
borrow funds at both fixed and floating rates. 

The Consolidated Entity manages its interest rate risk in accordance with Board approved policy. This policy is designed to 
mitigate the financial risk arising from movements in interest rates to: 

• meet stakeholder expectations in respect of earnings and interest expense; and 

• protect the financial undertakings under the Consolidated Entity‘s debt facilities.  

The current interest rate risk management policy, unchanged since 2013, is as follows: 

• no interest rate hedging to be entered into for the time being; and 

• no minimum level of fixed rate debt is prescribed. 

 
The Consolidated Entity‘s non-derivative exposure to interest rate risk as at 30 June 2014 is as follows: 

• Cash (weighted average interest rate 1.5-2.1%).  Refer consolidated statement of financial position. 

• Bank overdraft (weighted average interest rate 4.0-6.0%).  Refer note 15. 

• Bank loans (weighted average interest rate 2.0-5.5%) excluding the effect of interest rate derivatives outlined below. 
Refer note 15. 

• Lease liabilities (weighted average interest rate 10.0-11.0%). Refer note 15. 
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28. Financial instruments (cont.) 

Interest rate sensitivity 

The Consolidated Entity‘s sensitivity to a 200 basis point increase or decrease in interest rates is less than $2,500,000 after 
tax (2013: $800,000 after tax). This level represents management‘s assessment of the possible changes in interest rates.  

Interest rate derivatives 

Under interest rate swap contracts, the Consolidated Entity agrees to exchange the difference between fixed and floating rate  
interest amounts calculated on agreed notional principal amounts. Such contracts enable the Consolidated Entity  to mitigate 
the risk of fluctuating interest rates on the cash flow exposure under its variable rate borrowings by exchanging floating ra te 
amounts for the fixed rate amounts. The interest rate swap contracts settle on a quarterly basis based upon the dif ference 
between the fixed rate under each contract and Australian Dollar (bank bill swap rate) BBSY. These differences are settled 
on a net basis. 

Hedging activities are reviewed regularly to align with the Consolidated Entity‘s interest rate risk manageme nt policy and are 
reported to the Board. 

The Consolidated Entity adopts the hedge accounting provisions of AASB 139 in respect of its interest rate hedges and does 
not enter into or trade derivative financial instruments for speculative purposes.  

The following table details the interest rate swap contracts outstanding as at reporting date:  

 

Average contracted 

Maturity  fixed interest 
rate 

Notional 

principal amount 
 

Fair value 
2014 2013 

% % 
2014 2013 

$‘000  $‘000 
2014 2013 

$‘000  $‘000 

Less than 1 year – 8.0% – 10,000 – (94) 

1 to 5 years – – – –      –      – 

The fair value of interest rate swaps and forward rate agreement contracts is included in the balance of other financial 
liabilities. 

Foreign exchange risk 

Foreign exchange risk is the effect on either the financial performance or capital value of the Consolidated Entity arising 
from movements in foreign exchange rates. The Consolidated Entity manages its foreign exchange risk in accordance with 
Board-approved policy and its overall strategy relating to foreign exchange risk management remains unchanged from 
2013. 

The Consolidated Entity is principally exposed to US Dollars (USD), Euro (EUR) and Great British Pounds (GBP), through 
its overseas operations. From time-to-time the Consolidated Entity holds cash and may have overdraft balances in each of 
these currencies, and undertakes transactions denominated in these foreign currencies. As a consequence, exposures to 
exchange rate fluctuations arise. 

The foreign currency exposure is not greater than A$100,000 (2013: A$700,000) for any one currency or $100,000 in 
aggregate (2013: $1,200,000) 

Liquidity risk management 

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Consolidated Entity will not have sufficient funds available to meet its financial commitments 
as and when they fall due. The Consolidated Entity manages its liquidity risk in accordance with Board -approved policy and 
its overall strategy relating to liquidity risk management remains unchanged from 2013. 

The Consolidated Entity manages its liquidity risk through frequent and periodic cash flow forecasting, reporting and analysi s. 
Liquidity support is provided through maintaining a liquidity buffer in committed debt facilities and accessing other 
uncommitted facilities. 
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28. Financial instruments (cont.) 

Liquidity risk management (cont.) 

The following tables detail the Consolidated Entity‘s expected maturity at balance date for non-derivative financial liabilities. 
The tables are based upon the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based upon their assumed debt rollover 
patterns and interest payments. 

  Weighted 
average 

interest rate 
% 

 

0-1 year 

$‘000 
1-2 years 

$‘000 

3-5 years 

$‘000 

Total 

$‘000 

2014       
Bank loans – A$  4.5% 8,994 85,262 46,310 140,566 

Bank loans – NZD (in A$)  5.3% 587 640 12,284 13,511 

Bank loans – EUR (in A$)  2.2% 505 606 28,394 29,505 

Bank loans – GBP (in A$)  2.4% 133 133 5,474 5,740 

Finance lease liabilities  10.0% 586 150 195 931 

Bank guarantees  – 57,284 – – – 

2013       
Bank loans – A$  4.7% 667 703 15,884 17,254 

Bank loans – NZD (in A$)  4.4% 340 371 8,995 9,706 

Bank loans – EUR (in A$)  1.7% 441 481 28,294 29,216 

Bank loans – GBP (in A$)  2.0% 102 102 5,129 5,333 

Finance lease liabilities  10.0% 748 476 71 1,295 

Bank guarantees  – 34,113 – – – 

Credit risk 

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counter-party will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the 
Consolidated Entity. The Consolidated Entity‘s overall credit risk management strategy of only dealing with creditworthy 
counter-parties, remains unchanged from 2013. The Consolidated Entity measures credit risk on a fair value basis. The 
Consolidated Entity limits credit risk on liquid funds and derivative instruments by only dealing with banks that have high 
credit-ratings assigned by international credit-rating agencies. 

Trade accounts receivable consist of a large number of customers, spread across diverse industries and geographical areas. 
Ongoing credit evaluation is performed on the counter-parties and, in certain instances, trade credit insurance cover is 
purchased. 

The carrying amount of financial assets recorded in the financial statements, net of any provisions for losses, represents the 
Consolidated Entity‘s maximum exposure to credit risk without taking account of the value of any collateral or other security  
obtained. 

The Consolidated Entity does not have any significant credit risk exposure to any single counter -party or any group of 
counter-parties having similar characteristics. 

The ageing profile of trade receivables is disclosed in note 8. 
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28. Financial instruments (cont.) 

Fair value 

The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Consolidated Entity‘s assets and liabilities recorde d 
at fair value. 

    Fair value measurement using 

  Date of valuation 

 

Total 

$‘000 
Level 1 

$‘000 

Level 2 

$‘000 

Level 3 

$‘000 

2014       

Contingent consideration – refer to note 22  30 June 2014 3,252 – – 3,252 

Derivative financial assets and liabilities  30 June 2014 – – – – 

2013       

Contingent consideration  30 June 2013 – – – – 

Derivative financial assets and liabilities  30 June 2013 110 – 110 – 

 
The directors consider that the carrying amount of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in t he 
financial statements approximates their fair values.  

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities referred to in this disclosure note has been derived as follows:  

• contingent consideration payable is determined using a discounted cash flow valuation technique.  The valuation 
model considers the present value of expected payment, discounted using a risk-adjusted discount rate.  The 
expected payment is determined by considering the possible scenarios of forecast EBITDA growth, the amount to be 
paid under each scenario and the probability of each scenario.  Significant unobservable inputs include:  
- Forecast three-year EBITDA growth – A 1% increase / decrease in forecast three-year EBITDA growth would 

result in a $230,000 increase / $600,000 decrease in the fair value of contingent consideration 

- Risk adjusted discount rate – A 100 basis point increase / decrease in the discount rate would result in a $70,000  
decrease / increase in the fair value of contingent consideration 

• interest rate swaps are determined as the present value of the estimated future cash flows based on observable yield 
curves derived from quoted interest rates matching maturities of the contracts  

• foreign currency forward contracts are derived using quoted forward exchange rates and yield curves derived from 
quoted interest rates matching maturities of the contracts 

• all other financial assets and financial liabilities are determined in accordance with generally acce pted pricing models 
based on either quoted prices in active markets or discounted cash flow analysis using inputs from observable 
current market transactions. 
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29. Earnings per share 

2014 2013 

Cents Cents 

Basic earnings per share 18.86 24.05 

Diluted earnings per share 18.51 23.27 

Basic earnings per share 

The earnings and weighted average number of ordinary shares used in the calculation of basic earnings per share are as 
follows: 

2014 2013 

$‘000 $‘000 

Earnings 44,200 56,159 

 

 

Diluted earnings per share 

The earnings and weighted average number of ordinary shares used in the calculation of diluted earnings per share are as 
follows: 

2014 2013 

$‘000 $‘000 

Earnings 44,200 56,159 
 

2014 2013 

No. ‘000 No. ‘000 

Weighted average number of shares
(i) 238,854 241,366 

Weighted average number of ordinary shares and potential ordinary shares used 
in the calculation of diluted earnings per share reconciles to the weighted average 
number of ordinary shares used in the calculation of basic earnings per share as 
follows: 

  

Weighted average number of shares used in the calculation of basic 
earnings per share 

234,310 233,500 

Shares deemed to be issued for no consideration in respect of:   
Executive share options and performance rights

(ii) 4,544 7,866 

 238,854 241,366 

(i) Weighted average number of converted, lapsed or cancelled potential ordinary shares used in the calculation of diluted earnin gs 

per share 

(ii) Executive share options and performance rights are considered to be potential ordinary shares and are therefore excluded from 

the weighted average number of ordinary shares used in the calculation of basic earnings per share. Where dilutive, potential  

ordinary shares are included in the calculation of diluted earnings per share. 

  

2014 2013 

No. ‘000 No. ‘000 

Weighted average number of shares 234,310 233,500 
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30. Segment reporting 

Segment descriptions 

The Consolidated Entity has identified the following three segments organised based on services and products: Workforce 
Services, Technical Professionals and Engineering and Marine services.  The operating results of these segments are 
monitored separately for the purpose of making decisions about resource allocation and performance assessment.  

Workforce Services Provision of supplementary labour hire.  Revenue from this segment is earned predominantly from the 
provision of blue-collar labour hire to clients in the industrial, mining and resources sectors. Brands in this 
segment include SKILLED and TESA. 

Technical 
Professionals 

Provision of engineering and technical professional, white collar, and nursing staff. Brands in this segment 
include Swan, Skilled Technical Professionals, Mosaic, PeopleCo, Damstra Mining Services and Skilled 
Healthcare. 

Engineering and 
Marine Services 

Provision of contract maintenance and engineering services and offshore marine staffing and vessel 
chartering and management services.  Brands in this segment include ATIVO, Thomas & Coffey, Skilled 
Offshore (formerly Offshore Marine Services) and Broadsword Marine Contractors. 

Other disclosures The Consolidated Entity predominantly operates in one geographical segment, being Australia. Inter-
segment pricing is on a normal commercial basis. 

Segment revenues and results  

 

Workforce 
Services 

Technical 
Professionals 

Engineering & 
Marine Services 

Un- 

allocated & 
eliminations Total 

2014 Segment result $‘000 $‘000 $‘000 $‘000 $‘000 

Revenue 884,253 375,032 614,092 (3,808) 1,869,569 

Other income – – 3,749 212 3,961 

EBITDA 35,200 16,574 58,278 (14,696) 95,356 

Depreciation and amortisation (5,176) (2,210) (4,909) (182) (12,477) 

Earnings before interest and tax 30,024 14,364 53,369 (14,878) 82,879 

Net interest expense     (7,781) 

Profit before tax before reconciling items     75,098 

Reconciliation of profit 

 

 

 

 

     

Redundancy and branch closure costs     (2,951) 

Acquisition and integration costs     (4,031) 

Amortisation of intangibles
(i)

     (6,211) 

Notional interest on deferred acquisition payments     (1,338) 

Profit before tax     60,567 

Income tax expense      (16,367) 

Profit for the period      44,200 

Segment assets and liabilities      
Assets 256,136 99,281 493,531 24,151 873,099 

Liabilities 71,399  21,127 120,269 181,507 394,302 

Other segment information      
Share of profit of jointly controlled entities – – 3,749 – 3,749 

Carrying value of investments accounted for using 
the equity method 

– – 22,882 – 22,882 

Acquisition of segment assets 6,529 1,295 168,978 – 176,801 

(i) Includes amortisation of acquired intangibles from wholly owned entities and amortisation recognised within equity 
accounted income from associates  
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30. Segment reporting (cont.) 

Segment revenues and results  

 

Workforce 
Services 

Technical 
Professionals 

Engineering & 
Marine Services 

Un- 

allocated & 
eliminations Total 

2013 Segment result $‘000 $‘000 $‘000 $‘000 $‘000 

Revenue 918,323 488,914 463,057 (2,102) 1,868,192 

Other income – – 5,701 325 6,026 

EBITDA 40,824 26,795 41,321 (13,857) 95,083 

Depreciation and amortisation (5,020) (2,978) (1,987) (394)  (10,379) 

Earnings before interest and tax 35,804 23,817 39,334 (14,251) 84,704 

Net interest expense    (3,774) (3,774) 

Profit before tax before reconciling items     80,930 

Reconciliation of profit 

 

 

 

 

     

Redundancy and branch closure costs     (2,505) 

Amortisation of intangibles
(i)

     (630) 

Acquisition costs     (614) 

Profit before tax     77,181 

Income tax expense      (21,022) 

Profit for the period      56,159 

Segment assets and liabilities      
Assets 263,089 113,241 279,524 28,866 684,720 

Liabilities 75,577  27,368 47,906 61,963 212,814 

Other segment information      
Share of profit of jointly controlled entities – – 5,701 – 5,701 

Carrying value of investments accounted for using 
the equity method 

– – 33,274 – 33,274 

Acquisition of segment assets 6,441 1,859 1,892 – 10,192 

(i) Amortisation of acquired intangibles recognised within equity accounted income from associates  
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31. Parent company disclosures 

 

2014 2013 

$‘000 $‘000 

Current assets 268,568 199,088 

Total assets 738,452 612,891 

Current liabilities 201,084 181,311 

Total liabilities 357,516 249,931 

Net assets 380,936 362,960 

Equity   
Issued capital 352,937 349,661 

Hedge reserve -    (65) 

Employee equity-settled benefits reserve 748 3,499 

Retained earnings 27,251                 9,865 

Total equity 380,936 362,960 

Profit for the year 56,047 53,348 
Other comprehensive income - 295 

Total comprehensive income 56,047 53,643 

Contingent liabilities   
Bank guarantees for various contracts 32,882 33,171 

As detailed in note 24, the Company has entered into a deed of cross guarantee 

with certain wholly owned controlled entities. The extent to which an outflow of 

funds will be required is dependent on the future operations of the entities that are 

party to the deed of cross guarantee being more or less favourable than currently 

expected. The deed of cross guarantee will continue to operate indefinitely.  

Total liabilities of these wholly owned entities (excluding amounts owed to the 
Company) 

32,600 53,190 

 65,482 86,361 

Commitments for expenditure 

There are no other commitments for expenditure, at the end of the financial year, other than those disclosed in the financial  
statements. 

32. Subsequent events 

Other Matters 

There has been no other matter or circumstance occurring subsequent to the end of the financial year that has significantly 
affected, or may significantly affect the operations of the Consolidated Entity, results of those operations, or the state of  
affairs of the Consolidated Entity in future financial years.  


